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LONDON LIFE LIMITED

Directors’ report

The Directors present their report and the Financial Statements of London Life Limited Company (“the Company™)
for the year ended 31 December 2010

The Company Is incorperated in the United Kingdom  Its registration number 1s 1179800 and its registered office
1s 1, Wythall Green Way, Wythall, Birmingham B47 6WG

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financal
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRS”} and the comparative information has been
restated accordingly In previous years the financial statements of the Company were prepared in accordance
with applicable United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Prnciples (‘UK GAAP™) Information on the
effect of the transition to IFRS 1s given on pages 48 to 54

Business review

Principal activities

The pnncipal activity of the Company I1s the transaction of varnous classes of insurance business covenng life
assurance, pension and annuity business in the form of participating, non-participating and unit-inked contracts
This will continue to be the main activity for the foreseeable future

The Company has ceased to write new business but continues to accept premiums on in-force business
All business 1s wntten In the Umited Kingdom

Strategy

The strategy of the Phoenix Group, of which the Company i1s a member, 15 to be recognised as the best and most
innovative manager of closed ife assurance funds to improve retums for policyholders and deliver vatue for
owners

Corporate activily

At 31 December 2010, the outstanding balance on the loans to Pearl Group Holdings (No 2) Limited (*PGHZ2"),
the Company’s immediate parent, were £57m (2009 £56m) and £18m (2009 £18m)

Business transacted

The Company maintains four long-term funds, together with its shareholder fund (“SHF”) The long-term funds
compnse a Life With-Profiis fund (“WP"), a Pensions With-Profits fund (“PWP") where, whilst operated on a
90 10 basis for discretionary payments to policyholders, the owners’ are entitled to any surplus emerging due to
contingent loan arrangements in place, a Life Non-Profit fund (*LNP”) and a Pension Non-Profit fund (*PNP”) In
terms of policyholder habilities, the PNP fund 15 the targest with gross policyhclder habiliies of £962m at the
period end

The Company wrtes a wide range of life and pensions business, predominantly on indvidual risks Business
wnitten in the Company includes unit-linked life and pensions and conventional life and pensions The LWP and
PWP funds transact convenhonal and unitised with-profits business together with some unit linked business The
PWP fund also reinsures some of its with-profits annurty business to Pearl Assurance Limited (formerdy Pear
Assurance Plc) The LNP fund transacts term assurance and permanent health insurance (*PHI") business as
well as immediate and deferred annutties, together with some unit inked business The PNP fund transacts
immediate annuities, deferred annuities and some unit linked business

The Company has re-insured certain blocks of immediate and deferred annuities to fellow subsidianes, Pearl
Assurance Limited and Opal Reassurance Limited (“Opal”) In addition, the Company has entered into a Surplus
Relief Reassurance Agreement with Pearl Assurance Limited Under this arrangement Pearl Assurance Limited
agrees to accept a defined level of nsk n respect of all of the long-term business excluding the LWP fund

Reinsurance arrangements are also in place with parties outside the Phoenix Group to cover some PHI,
endowment and whole life nsks

Policy administration is outsourced to Pearl Group Services Lirmted (“PGS”), a fellow Group company PGS has,
in turn, outsourced all admifustration to Diligenta Limited  Under the agreements with PGS the majonty of costs
are levied on a per policy basis thereby mitigating the Company’s expense nsk Asset management 1s pnmanly
ouisourced to Ignis Asset Management Limited, a fellow group entity

The gross premium income of the Gompany for the year was £17m (2009 £24m)

The total value of assets was £3,467m compared with £3,529m a year earlier

The gross habitities under insurance and investment contracts at 31 December 2010 were £1,886m (2009
£1,885m)
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There 1s a provision for the Company's shareholder fund and, to a lesser extent, the non-profit funds to support
any of the Company's with-profits funds in the event of a regulatory deficit in the with-profits funds

Valuation result

The Company Is required to retain sufficient capital at all imes 1o meet the regulatory capital requirements
mandated by the FSA A valuation of the long-term insurance business of the Company in accordance with the
FSA Handbook for Insurers 1ssued by the Financial Services Authonty was made as at 31 December 2010 FSA
rules require the Company to determine its frabilities and capital requirements on two different bases which are
known as the “regulatory basis” and the “realistic basis” and effectively take the higher of the two The valuation
showed a surplus in excess of capital requirements of £246m (2009 £208m)

Resuits and dividends
The results of the Company for the year are shown n the statement of comprehensive iIncome on page 14 The
profit before tax was £19m (2009 £31m)

Nc dividends were paid duning the year (2009 £mi)

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Company 1s exposed to a number of financal nsks ansing from ts underlying assets and liabilihes, 1n
particular from falls in financial markets, the change in interest rates, the widening of credit spreads and the risk
of corporate defaults

The principal owners’ nsk exposures dunng the year relate to all of the long-term funds due to the contingent loan
arrangement in place with the PWP fund, the shareholder ownership of any LWP surplus and the 100%
shareholder ownership of the LNP and PNP funds Life assurance, PHI, cntical iliness contracts are affected by
mortality and morbidity nsks whilst pensions business is adversely affected by improving annuitant longevity
Persistency and expense inflation nsks apply to most preducts The owners' are also exposed to the nsks of
meeling policyholder guarantees in the with-profits funds The funds also carry investment nisk on any surplus
assets and from investment performance associated with products carrying fund based charges A proportion of
the business in the PNP fund i1s unit-linked with the investment performance nsk being carried by policyholders,
although owner profit is affected by fund based charges Risk exposures will reflect the wide range of business
managed, with market rnisks and improving annuitant mortality being the prnincipal nsk exposures De-nsking
strategies are n place such as investment strategies matching fixed interest secunties with liabihties and the
purchase of interest rate swaptions to mitigate nsks of guaranteed annuity options

In addition, the Company faces operational nsks The outsourced policy administration arrangements which as
noted above have been outsourced to Diligenta are constdered secure even In extreme stresses, specifically
given the letter of credit and guarantee provided by Diligenta’s parent undertaking Tata Consultancy Services

As a result of the vanous transactions mentioned above, the Company 1s exposed to increased counterparty nsk
from the loans to PGH2

Further information on financial nsks 1s provided in the notes to the financial statements

Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs")
The Company's performance I1s measured and monitored by the Board with particular regard paid to the following
KPlIs:

Customers

The Directors review vanous metncs in respect of Treating Customers Fairdy ("TCF"), customer communication
and complaints on a monthly basis TCF 15 monitored through vanous TCF committees and any exceptions are
reported to the Board as appropnate

There 1s a with-profits committee compnsing mostly of independent members to opine on 1ssues of faimess to
policyholders including ensunng policyholder monies are managed in accordance with the Company’s Principles
and Practices of Financial Management (“PPFM")

Capital resources

The aim of the Company i1s to maintain an appropriate margin of capital resources over capital resource
requirements, both on a Pillar 1 and a Pillar 2 basis As at 31 December 2010, the Company’s surplus assets on
a Pillar 1 basis were £246m (2009 £208m)

Profits after taxation and distnibutable reserves

For the year ended 31 December 2010 the Company reported a profit after taxation of £6m (2009 £12m} As at
31 December 2010, the Company had distributable reserves amounting to £183m (2009 £177m), subject to the
provisions of the 1997 Schedule 2C Scheme
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Cash flows
Policyholder and owner cash flows are monitored closely by the business to ensure that all habilities can be met
as they fall due

Investment performance
The performance of the Company's invested assets Is reviewed against pre-defined benchmarks by the Board,
the Investment Committee and the Asset-Liability Management Committee (*ALCO")

Future developments
The Company's long-term business I1s in gradual run off The Company will continue to explore future business
opportunittes which help to secure future benefits for both policyholders and owners

Going concern

The Directors’ report summarnises the Company's activities, its financial performance and fmancial position
together with any factors likely to affect its future development In addition, it discusses the principal nsks and
uncertainties it faces Notes 31 and 32 to the financial statements summarise the Company’s nsk and capital
management objectives and policies together with its financial nsks

The Board has followed the United Kingdom Financial Reporting Council’s “Gomng Concern and Liqurdity Risk
Guidance for Directors of UK Compames 2009 when performing therr going concern assessment As part of its
comprehensive assessment of whether the Company 1s a going concern, the Board has undertaken a review of
the vatuation and liquidity of its investmentis at the penod end The Board has also reviewed solvency and cash
flow projections under normal and stressed conditions

As a result of this review, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources
1o continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis In prepanng the financial statements

Directors
The names of those indviduals who served as Directors of the Company dunng the year or who held office as at
the date of signature of this report are as follows

A B Davidson

J P Evans Chairman

K Luscombe resigned on 3 February 2010
M J Merrnick

A Moss appointed on 10 June 2010
J C Park appointed on 1 Apnl 2010

M D Ross

JS B Smith resigned on 25 March 2010
W R Treen

M N Urmston appointed on 18 January 2010
JJ Yates appointed on 24 June 2010
Secretary

G A Watson acted as Secretary throughout the year

Disclosure of indemnity

Qualifying third party iIndemnity arrangements (as defined in section 234 of the Companies Act 2006} were In
force for the benefit of the Directors of the Company dunng the year and remain in place at the date of approval of
this report

Disclosure of information to auditors

So far as each of the Directors 158 aware, there 1s no relevant audit information (as defined in the Companies Act
2006) of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and each of the Directors has taken all the steps that he/she
ought to have taken as a Director to make himself/fherself aware of any relevant audit information {as defined) and
to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information

This confirmation s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 418(2) of the
Companies Act 2006
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Re-appointment of auditors

In accordance with section 487 of the Companres Act 2006, the Company's auditors, Ernst & Young LLP, will be
deemed to have been re-appointed at the end of the period of 28 days following circulation of copies of these
financial statements as no notice has been received from members pursuant to section 488 of the Companies Act
2006 prior to the end of the accounting reference pernod to which these financial statements relate

On behalf of the Board

A Moss

Director

22 March 2011
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Statement of Directors’ responsibihities

The Drrectors are required to prepare financial statements for each accounting penod that comply with the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Union (“IFRS"), and which present fairly the financial performance, financial position and cash flows
of the Company, and the information on the transition to IFRS for the accounting penod A fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Directors to

e select suitable accounting policies and vernfy they are applied consistently in prepanng the financial
statements on a going concern basis unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the Company will continue in
business,

e present information, including accounting policies, In a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable
and understandable information,

e provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS s insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the
Company’s financial position and financial performance, and

» state that the Company has complied with apphicable IFRS, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for maintaining proper accounting records which are intended to disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company They are also ultimately responsible for
the systems of internal control maintatned for safeguarding the assets of the Cormpany and for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other rregulanties
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of London Life Limited

We have audited the financial statements of London Life Limited for the year ended 31 December 2010 which
comprise the accounting policies, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of financral position, the
statement of cash flows, the statement of changes in equity, the related notes 1 to 36 and the information on the
transition to IFRS on pages 48 to 54 The financial reperting framework that has been applied in thewr preparation
1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (“IFRS™}

This report 1s made solsly to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Compantes Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members
those matters we are required fo state to them in an auditer's report and for no other purpose To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explained more fuily In the Statement of Directors’ Responsibiliies set out on page 6, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and far
view Our responsibilty 1s to audit and express an opinicn on the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Company’s
circumstances and have been consistently apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on the financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements

* give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2010 and of its profit for
the year then ended,

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with iFRS, and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Comparies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared I1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report
to you if, In our opinion

« adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
receved from branches not visited by us, or
the financial statements are not ¢ eement with the accounting records and returns, or
certain disclosures of Directors’ neration spectfied by law are not made, or

L ]
fﬂ) we have not received all the wation and explanations we require for our audit
Z_ /IAJ L Slou Le

James Lenton

Senior Statutory Auditor
For and behalf of Ej
London

t & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

25 March 2011
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Accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except those financial assets and financial
habilities that have been measured at fair value

The financial statements are separate financial statements and the exemption in section 401 of the Compamies
Act, 2006 has been used not to present consolidated financial statements

Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union (“IFRS")

The financial statements are presented in sterling (£} rounded to the nearest £€m except where otherwise stated

The Company presents ils statement of financial position broadly in order of hquidity An analysis regarding
recovery or settlement more than twelve months after the period end 1s presented in the notes

Assets and labilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position only when there
15 a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there 1s an intention to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the assets and settle the hability simultaneously Income and expenses are not offset in the statement
of comprehensive income unless required or permitted by an international financial reporting standard or
interpretation, as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the Company

{b) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and habilities,
income and expenses The eshimates and associated assumptions are based on histonical expenence and
vanous other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of the judgements about carrying values of assets and habilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources Actual results may differ from these esttmates

Cntical accounting estimates are those which nvolve the most complex or subjective judgements or
assessments The areas of the Company’s business that typically require such estimates are insurance and
investment contract habilities, determination of the fair value of financial assets and lhabilities, impairment tests for
intangible assets and iIncome taxes

Insurance and investment contract liabilities

Insurance and investment contract iability accounting 1s discussed in more detail in accounting polictes {e) and (f)
with further detail of the key assumptions made in determining insurance and investment contract habilities
included in note 32

Fatir value of financtal assets and liabilities

The fair values of financial assets and habilities are classified and accounted for as set out in accounting policies
{m) and (g) respectively Where possible, financial assets and habilities are valued on the basis of listed market
prices by reference to quoted market bid prices for assets and offer prices for liabiliies, without any deduction for
transaction costs These are categonsed as Level 1 financial instruments and do not involve estimates If prices
are not readly determinable, farr value 1s determined using valuation techniques including prcing models,
discounted cash flow techniques or broker quotes Financiaf instruments valued where valuation techniques are
based on observable market data at the penod end are categonsed as Level 2 financial instruments  Financial
instruments valued where valuation technigues are based on non observable inputs are categonsed as Level 3
financial instruments Level 2 and Level 3 financial instruments therefore involve the use of estimates

impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assets are subject to regular mparrment reviews as detailed in accounting policy (k) Imparments are
measured at the difference between the carrying value of a parlicular asset and its recoverable amount
Impairments are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the penod in which they occur

income taxes

Deferred tax assets are recogrused to the extent that they are regarded as recoverable, that is to the extent that,
on the basis of all the avallable evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be sutable
taxable profits against which the losses can be relieved The UK taxation regime applies separate rules to trading
and capital profits and losses The distinction between temporary differences that anse from tems of erther a
capital or trading nature may affect the recognition of deferred tax assets Any judgements made, and
uncertainties considered, 1n arriving at the carrying values of deferred tax assets and habidities in the financial
statements are discussed in note 19

The accounting policy for income taxes (both current and deferred taxes) ts discussed in more detalt in
accounting policy (1)
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(c) Foreign currency transactions

Assets and labilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the closing rate at the penod
end Income and expenses denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the prevailing rate at the date of
the transaction Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation of monetary assets and labiliies denominated in foreign currencies are recogmsed within fair
value gains and losses in the statement of comprehensive income

(d) Classification of contracts
Contracts under which the Company accepts significant insurance nsk are classified as insurance contracts

Contracts under which the transfer of insurance nsk to the Company from the policyholder 1s not significant are
classified as investment contracts

Some insurance and mvestment contracts contain a Discretionary Participation Feature (“DPF”) This feature
entitles the policyholder to additional discretionary benefits as a supplement to guaranteed benefits  Investment
contracts with a DPF are recogrused, measured and presented as insurance contracts

{(e) Insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF

Under current IFRS requirements, insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF are measured using
accounting policies consistent with those previcusly adopted under United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Prnciples (“UK GAAP”) Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent
with the outstanding claims provision or setfled claims associated with the reinsured policy

Insurance liabilities

The insurance contract hability for non-participating non-linked business 1s calculated inhally to comply with the
requirements of the FSA Handbook for Insurers 1ssued by the Financial Services Authonty (“‘FSA”), the UK
Regulator The liability for insurance contracts in the non-profit fund i1s adjusted where necessary by removing
excessively prudent margins required for statutory solvency purposes together with general contingency reserves
Insurance contract iabilities for non-participating business are calculated using either a net premium or gross
premium method Where a gross premium method 1s used, the liability includes allowance for prudent lapses
Negative policy values are allowed for on individual policies where there are no guaranteed surrender values or In
the penods where guaranteed surrender values do not apply even though guaranteed surrender values are
applicable after a specified penod of time

The principal assumptions are given in note 32

For participating busmness, the Company follows the provisions of the UK Accounting Standard Board's FRS 27
Life Assurance In accordance with these requirements, the llabihties under insurance contracts and investment
contracts with DPF are calculated to comply with the requirements of the FSA realistic capital regime The key
aspects of this methodology are

) habilties 1o policyholders arnising from the with-profits business are stated at the amount of the realistic
value of the liabilhes, adjusted to exclude the owners’ share of projected future bonuses and the
associated tax lrabilities,

® acquisition costs are not deferred, and

. reinsurance recovenes are measured on a basis that 1s consistent with the valuation of the lhability to
policyholders to which the reinsurance apples

The pnncipal assumptions are given in note 32

Embedded derivatives

Embedded denvatives, including opticns to surrender insurance contracts, that meet the definiion of insurance
contracts or are closely related 1o the host insurance contract, are not separately measured All other embedded
denvatives are separated from the host contract and measured at fair value through profit or loss

Liability adequacy

At each reporting date, hability adequacy tests are performed to assess whether the insurance contract and
investment contract with DPF liabilites are adequate Current best estimates of future cash flows are compared
to the carrying value of the hatilities Any deficiency 1s charged to the statement of comprehensive income

The Company’s accounting polictes for insurance contracts meet the miimum specified requirements for hability
adequacy testing under IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, as they allow for current estimates of all contractual cash
flows and of related cash flows such as claims handling costs Cash flows resulting from embedded options and
guarantees are also allowed for, with any deficiency being recognised in the statement of comprehensive income

Unallocated surpius

The unallocated surplus comprises the excess of the assets over the policyholder labiities of the with-profits

business For the Company's with-profits funds, the amount included n the statement of financial position line

item ‘Unallocated surplus’ represents amounts which have yet to be allocated to owners since the unallocated

surplus attnbutable to policyholders has been included within habiliies under insurance contracts The with-
4

9
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profits funds are closed to new business and as permitted by IFRS 4, the whole of the unallocated surplus has
been classified as a liability (either within Insurance contract habilities or unaliocated surplus)

{f Investment contracts without DPF

Receipts and payments on investment contracts without DPF are accounted for using depesit accounting, under
which the amounts collected and paid out are recognised in the statement of financial position as an adjustment
to the hability to the policyholder

The valuation of habilities on unit-linked contracts 1s based on the fair value of the related assets and habilities
The financial hability is measured based on the carrying value of the assets and habiiities that are held to back the
contract The liabiity 1s the sum of the unit-inked habilities plus an additional amount to cover the present value
of the excess of future policy costs over future charges

Investment income and the movements In the fair value of investment contracts without DPF are included in the
‘change in Investment contract habilities’ in the statement of comprehensive income

{g) Financial habtlities

On inibal recognition, financial habdihes are recognised when due and measured at the farr value of the
consideration recewved less directly attnbutable transacton costs (with the exception of habilities at fair value
through proiit or loss for which all transaction costs are expensed) Subsequent to inhal recognition, financial
habilthes (except for hiabilities under investment contracts and other hiabiities designated at fair value through
profit or loss) are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Financial habilities are designated upon imitial recegnition at fair value through profit or loss when doing so results
in more meaningful information because either

. it elminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recogmtion inconsistency (sometimes referred to
as an ‘accounting mismatch’) that would otherwise anse from measurnng assets or habilities or recognising
the gains and losses on them con different bases, or

. a group of financial assets, financial labiliies or both 1s managed and its performance 15 evalualed on a
farr value basis, in accordance with a documented nsk management or investment stralegy, and
information about the group 1s provided internally on that basis to the Company's key management
personnel

(h) Deposits from reinsurers

It 1s the Company's practice to obtain collateral to cover certain reinsurance transactions, usually in the form of
cash or marketable secunties Where cash collateral 1s available to the Company for investment purposes, the
investments are recogmsed as ‘financtal assets’ and the collateral repayable 1s recognised as ‘deposits received
from reinsurers’ within the statement of financial position

(1) Obligations for repayment of collaterai received

It 1s the Company's practice to obtain collateral in stock lending and denvative transactions, usually in the form of
cash or marketable securnties Where cash collateral 15 available to the Company for investment purposes, the
investments are recognised within the statement of financial position as ‘financial assets’ and the collateral
repayable 1s recognised as ‘obligations for repayment of collateral The ‘obligations for repayment of collateral
recewved’ are measured at amortised cost, which in the case of cash i1s equivalent to cost

n Income tax

Income tax comprnses current and deferred tax Income tax 1s recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the statement of changes in equity, in which case
it ts recognised in this statement

Current tax 15 the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates and laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the date of the statement of financial position together with adjustments to tax payable in
respect of previous years

Deferred tax 1s provided for on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habilties for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes Deferred tax 1s not provided In respect
of temporary differences ansing from the imibal recognition of goodwill and the inhal recogmition of assets or
llabilities 1n a transachon that 1s not a business combination and that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit The amount of deferred tax prowvided 1s based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and habiliies, using tax rates and laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the penod end

A deferred tax asset 1s recognised only to the extent that it 1s prebable that future taxable profits will be available

against which the asset can be utilised Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be reahsed

10
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The tax charge 1s analysed between tax that 1s payable in respect of policyholders’ returns and tax that 1s payable
on owners’ returns This allocation is calculated based on an assessment of the effective rate of tax that 1s
applicable to owners for the year

(k) Intangible assets

Acquired in-force business

Insurance and investment contracts with and without DPF acquired In business combinations and portfolio
transfers are measured at tair value at the tme of acquisiion The difference between the fair value of the
contractual nghts acquired and obligations assumed and the lability measured in accordance with the Company's
accounting policies for such contracts 1s recognised as acquired in-force business

Acquired in-force business 18 amortised over the estimated life of the contracts on a basis which recognises the
emergence of the economic benefits

An impairment review i1s performed whenever there i1s an indication of impairment When the recoverable amount
is less than the carrying value, an imparment loss 15 recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
Acquired in-force business 1s also considered in the hability adequacy test for each reporting peniod

() Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in shares in subsidianies held for strategic purposes are carried in the statement of financial position
at cost less impairment Investments in shares in subsidianies held for investment purposes are carned at fair
value

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether an investment in subsidiary or group of investments In
subsidiaries held at cost 1s impaired The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists Ewvidence of impairment 1s cbtained by companng the carrying value of the investment in the subsidiary
with the estimate of the recoverable amount of the subsidiary

There are no investments in subsidianes held for investment purposes

(m) Financial assets
Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, which 1s the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset

Loans and receivables are non denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market These investments are imtially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration
paid for the acquisition of the investment All transaction costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition are also
included in the cost of the investment Subsequent to imhial recognition, these investments are carned at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method

Denivative financial instruments are classified as held for trading They are recognised inihally at farr value and
subsequently are re-measured to fair value Exchange-traded derivatives are valued at the pubhshed bid price,
or, if these are not available, by using valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models or option pricing
models The gain or loss on re-measurement to fair value Is recognised In the statement of comprehensive
income

Equties, fixed and vanable rate income secunties and collective investment schemes are designated at fair value
through profit or loss and accordingly are stated in the statement of financial position at farr value They are
designated at fair value through profit or loss because they are managed and evaluated on a fair value basis in
accordance with the Company’s stated sk management policies

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each penod end whether a financial asset or group of financial assets held at
amortised cost 1s impaired The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists tor
financial assets If it 1s determined that no objective evidence of imparment exists for an indvidually assessed
financial asset, the asset 1s included in a group of financial assets with similar credit nsk characteristics and that
group of financial assets I1s collectively assessed for impairment Assels that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in the collective
assessment of impairment

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets such as publicly traded securities and denvatives
are based on quoted market prices at the period end The quoted market price used for financial assets i1s the
current bid price on the trade date The far value of investments that are not traded i an active market I1s
determined using valuaton techniques such as broker quotes, pncing models or discounted cash flow
techniques Where pricing models are used, inputs are based on market related data at the penod end Where
discounted cash flow techmques are used, estimated future cash flows are based on contractual cash flows using
current market condmions and market calibrated discount rates and interest rate assumptions for similar
instruments

11




LONDON LIFE LIMITED

For urits in unit trusts and shares in open-ended investment companies, fair value 1s by reference to published
bid-values The tarr value of receivables and floating rate and overnight deposits with credit institutions s therr
carrying value The far value of fixed interest-beanng deposits 1s estimated using discounted cash flow
techniques

Stock lending

Financial assets that are lent under the Company’s stock lending programme do not qualfy for derecognition from
the statement of financial position as the Company retains substanthally all the nsks and rewards of the
transferred assets

Collateral

The Company receives and pledges collateral in the form of cash or non-cash assets in respect of stock lending
transactions and derivative contracts in order to reduce the credit nsk of these transactions The amount and
type of collateral required where the Company receives collateral depends on an assessment of the credit nsk of
the counterparty

Caollateral received in the form of cash, where the Company has contractual nghts to receive the cash flows
generated, 15 recognised as an asset in the statement of financial posihon with a corresponding hability for its
repayment Non-cash collateral received 1s not recognised in the statement of financial position, unless the
counterparty defaults on its obligations under the relevant agreement

Cash and non-cash collateral pledged where the Company retains the contractual nghts to receve the cash flows
generated 1s not derecognised from the statement of financial posttion, unless the Company defaults on its
obligations under the relevant agreement, and therefore continues to be recognised in the statement of financial
positton within the appropnate asset classification

(n) Reinsurance

The Company cedes insurance nsk in the normal course of business Rensurance assets represent balances
due from reinsurance companies Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract habiites are dependent on expected
claims and benefits ansing under the related remsured policies

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication of
impairment anses during the reporting year Impairment occurs when there i1s objective evidence as a result of an
event that occurred after imitial recognition of the reinsurance asset that the Company may not receive all
outstanding amounts due under the terms of the contract and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the
amounts that the Company will receive from the reinsurer The impairrment 10ss i1s recorded n the statement of
comprehensive mcome The reinsurers’ share of investment contract liabihties 1s measured on a basis that 1s
consistent with the valuation of the hability to policyhclders to which the reinsurance applies

Reinsurance premiums payable in respect of certain reinsured individual and group pensions annuity contracts
are payable by quarterly instalments Due to the penod of ime over which reinsurance premiums are payable
under these arrangements, the reinsurance prermums and related payables are discounted to present values
using a pre-tax nsk-free rate of retum The unwinding of the discount 1s included as a charge within the statement
of comprehensive income

Gains or losses on purchasing reinsurance are recognised in the statement of comprehensive iIncome at the date
of purchase and are not amortised They are the difference between the premiums ceded to reinsurers and the
related change 1n the reinsurers’ share of insurance contract habilities

(o} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash balances and shert-term deposits with an onginal matunty term of
three months or less at the date of placement Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Company's cash management are deducted from cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the statement of cash flows

{(p) Prowvisions and contingent hiabilities

A provision Is recogmsed when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it 1s probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation  If the effect
15 matenal, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the tme value of money and, where appropnate, the nsks specific to the hability
Where the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation but 1t 1s not probable that there will be an
outflow of resources to settle the obligation or the amount cannot be reliably estimated, this I1s disclosed as a
contingent hability

A provision 15 recognised for onerous contracts in which the unavaidable costs of meeting the obligations under
the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it The unavoidable costs reflect the
least net cost of exiting the contract, which I1s the lower of the cost of fulfilling ¢ and any compensation or
penalties ansing from failure to fulfil t
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(q) Dividends
Final dnadends on ordinary shares are recogrised as a hability and deducted from equity when they are approved
by the Company’s owners Intenm dividends are deducted from equity when they are paid

Dividends for the year that are approved after the reporting penod are dealt with as an event after the reporting
penod

Declared dividends are those that are appropnately authonsed and are no longer at the discretion of the entity

(r) Income recognition

Gross premiums

In respect of Insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF, premiums are accounted for on a recevable
basis and exclude any laxes or duttes based on premwums Funds at retirement under individual pension
contracts converted to annuities with the Company are, for accounting purposes, included in both claims incurred
and premiums within gross premiums wntten

Reinsurance premiums
Qutward reinsurance premiums are accounted for on a payable basis

Fee and commussion income
Fee and commission income relates to the following

L4 investment contract income — nvestment contract policyholders are charged for policy administration
services, Investment management services, surrenders and other contract fees These fees are
recognised as revenue over the penod in which the related services are performed  If the fees are for
services provided in future penods, then they are deferred and recognised over those penods  ‘Front end’
fees are charged on some non-participating investment contracts  Where the non-participating
investment contract 15 measured at farr value, such fees which relate to the provision of investment
management services are deferred and recogmsed as the services are provided, and

. other fees, which are recognised as the services are provided

Net investment income
Net investment iIncome compnses interest, dividends, fair value gains and losses on financial assets and
impairment losses on loans and deposits

Interest Income ts recogrused in the statement of comprehensive income as it accrues using the effective interest
method Dwvidend income s recognised In the statement of comprehensive income on the date the nght to
receive payments I1s established, which in the case of listed secunties 1s the ex-dividend date

Fair value gains and losses on financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income Realised gains and losses are the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the onginal cost Unrealised gains and losses are the difference between the valuation at the
pencd end and their valuation at the previous penod end or purchase price, if acquired dunng the year

(s) Benefits, claims and expenses recognition

Gross benefits and claims

Claims on msurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF reflect the cost of all claims arising during the
penod, including policyholder bonuses allocated in anticipation of a bonus declaraton Claims payable on
matunty are recognised when the claim becomes due for payment and claims payable on death are recognised
on notification Surrenders are accounted for at the earlier of the payment date or when the policy ceases to be
included within insurance contract lablites Where claims are payable and the contract remans in force, the
claim instalment 1s accounted for when due for payment Clarms payable include the costs of settlement

Reinsurance claims
Relnsurance claims are recognised when the related gross insurance claim i1s recogrised according to the terms
of the relevant contract

Finance costs
Interest payable i1s recognised in the income statement as It accrues and is calculated by using the effective
interest method

(t) Share capital

Ordinary share capital
The Company has issued ordinary shares which are classified as equity

13
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Statement of comprehensive iIncome
for the year ended 31 December 2010

Gross premiums wniten
Less premiums ceded to reinsurers
Net premiums wrnitten

fFees and commissions
Net investment income
Total revenue, net of reinsurance payable

Policyholder claims

Less remnsurance recoveres

Change in insurance contract habilites

Change In reinsurers’ share of insurance contract habilities
Transfer from/{to) unallocated surplus

Net policyholder claims and benefits incurred

Change n investment contract liabilities
Impairment of acquired in-force business
Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Profit before finance costs and tax

Finance costs

Profit for the year before tax

Tax attnbutable to policyholders’ returns
Profit before tax attributable to owners

Tax charge
Less tax attrbutable to policyholders’ returns
Tax attributable to owners

Profit tor the year attnibutable to owners

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

14

Notes

WM

12

2010 2009
£m £m
17 24
- 2
17 26
3 3
173 106
193 135
{149) (173)
44 45
27 151
18 (31)
2 (1
(58) (9
(39) (47}
(1) -
(9) (10)
(64) {31)
(171) {97)
22 a8
(3) (7)
19 31
(1 {(2)
18 29
(13) (19}
1 2
(12) 17)
6 12
6 12
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Statement of financial position — equity and habilities

as at 31 December 2010

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital
Retained earnings

Total equity

Liabilities

Insurance contract habilities
Liabihttes under insurance contracts
Unallocated surplus

Fimancial iabilities
Investment contracts
Deposits receved from remnsurers
Denvatves
Obligations for repayment of collateral received
Contingent loan

Prowvisions

Deferred tax

Payables related to direct insurance contracts
Current tax

Accruals

Other payables

Total liabilities

Total equity and habilities

15

Notes

10

11

As at 31 As at 31 As at 1
December December January
2010 2009 2009
£m £m £m
19 19 19
180 184 172
209 203 191
1,535 1,562 1,713
6 8 7
1,541 1,570 1,720
351 333 307
560 545 552
73 48 117
525 664 726
180 127 105
1,689 1,717 1,807
- 2 4

2 2 2

6 9 6

9 6 -

2 1 3

9 19 8
3,258 3,326 3,550
3,467 3,529 3,741
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Statement of financial position — assets
as at 31 December 2010

ASSETS

Intangible assets
Acquired in-torce business

Financial assets
Loans and deposits
Denvatives
Equities
Fixed and vanable rate income securities
Collective iInvestment schemes
Reinsurers’ share of investment contract llabihities

Deferred tax assets

Insurance assets
Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract habilities
Reinsurance receivables
Insurance contract receivables

Current tax

Prepayments and accrued income
Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

On behalf of the Board E

A Moss
Director
22 March 2011

16

Notes

24

25
14

26

19

11

19

28
29

As at 31 As at 31 Asat1
December December January
2010 2009 2009
£m £m £m
8 9 9
8 9 9
146 209 176 ,
99 67 179 '
6 3 11 !
1,654 1,640 1,766
982 756 797 !
13 13 12
2,800 2,688 2,941
4 10 9
607 589 620
- - 1
4 4 4
611 593 625
- - 2
23 23 27
13 5 21
8 201 107
3,467 3,529 3,741
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Statement of cash flows
as at 31 December 2010

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash (utiised)/generated by operations

Net cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest receved from Group entities

Net cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Transfer of loan to fellow subsidiary

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net {decrease)increase 1n cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginrung of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Supplementary disclesures on cash flow from operating activities

Interest receved
Dividends receiwved

17

2010 2009
Notes £m £m
30 (264) 87
(264) 87
6 7
] 7
25 65 -
65 -
(193) 94
20 107
29 8 201
83 98
4 -
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Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2010

Share

capital Retained
{note 10) Eamings Total
£m £m £m
At 1 January 2010 19 184 203
Profit for the year - 6 6
Other comprehensive income for the year - - -
Total comprehensive ncome for the year - 6 6
At 31 December 2010 19 190 209

In accordance with the terms of the 1997 Schedule 2C scheme, dividends or return of capital may only be made
to owners of the company provided that the Financial Services Authonty (“FSA") certifies that at that point there
are sufficient assets to cover policyholders’ reasonable benefit expectations, inter-fund loan amounts and
solvency requirements as set out In the Schedule 2C scheme

Of the above, £183m {2009 £177m) of retained earntngs I1s considered distnbutable

Share

capital Retaned
(note 10) eamings Total
£m £m £m
At 1 January 2009 19 172 191
Profit for the year - 12 12
Other comprehensive income for the year - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - 12 12
At 31 December 2009 19 184 203
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Notes to the financial statements
1 Financial information

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010, set out on pages 8 to 54, were authonsed by the
Board of Directors for issue on 22 March 2011 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
IFRS The comparative amounts for the year ended 31 December 2009 are based on the Company’s financial
statements for that year after adjustment for the transition from United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Pnnciples (“UK GAAP™) to IFRS

Information on how the transition to IFRS has affected the financial position, financial perfformance and cash flows
of the Company I1s set out on pages 48 to 54 This information includes reconciliations of equity and income as
reported under UK GAAP to financial information reported under IFRS

In preparing the financial statements the Company has adopted all applicable standards, interpretations and
amendments which have been 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board and have been adopted
for use by the EU 1n 2010

in addition, the Company has adopted the amendments to IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures These amend the
definition of a related party, clanfy its intended meaning and eliminate inconsistencies and, as permiited, have
been early adopted from 2010

The International Accounting Standards Board has i1ssued the following standards, interpretations and
amendments which, subject to adoption for use by the EU, apply from the dates shown The Company has
decided not to early adopt any of these standards, interpretations or amendments where this 1s permitted The
impact of adopting them 1s subject to evaluation but 1s currently not expected to have a matenal effect on the
results of the Company

e IFRS 9 Financial instruments (2013) IFRS 9 1s the first phase of the project to replace 1AS 39 Financial
Instruments Recogmition and Measurement and deals with the classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial iabilities, including some hybnd contracts

+  Annual improvements 2010 (2011} This makes a number of minor improvements to existing standards and
interpretations

» Deferred tax Recovery of Underlying Assets (Amendments to IAS 12) (2012) This provides a practical
approach to the measurement of deferred tax abiiies and assets when investment property 1s measured at
fair value, according to whether the entity expects to recover an asset by using or selling it

» Disclosure — Transfer of Financial Assets (Amendments to IFRS 7} (2012} This revises the required
disclosures to help users of financial statements evaluate the nsk exposures relating to transfers of financial
assets and the effect of those nsks on an entity’s financial position

In addition, the following standards, interpretations and amendments have been 1ssued but are not currently
relevant to the Company

e IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabifihes with Equity Instruments (2011)
+ Classification of Rights Issues (Amendments to IAS 32} (2011)

e  Prepayments of a Mimimum Funding Requirement (Amendments to IFRIC 14) (2011}

e Severe Hypennflahon and Remaval of Fixed Dates for First-tme Adopters (Amendments to IFRS 1) (2012)
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2 Fees and commissions

2010 2009
£m £m
Investment contract income 3 3
3  Netinvestment income
2010 2009
£m £m
Investment income
Interest income on loans and deposits 8 9
Dmdend income 4 -
Interest income on financial assets designated at far
value through profit or loss on inihial recognition 75 87
87 96
Fair value gains/(losses)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for trading {22) 16
Designated upon imvihial recognition 108 (6)
86 10
Net investment income 173 106

Interest iIncome on loans and deposits includes interest of £8m (2009 £9m) on loans to Group entities

Included within held for trading financial assets 1s £563m of losses (2009 £22m of losses) in respect of the change
in value of the contingent loan hability (see note 186)

4. Administrative expenses

2010 2009

£m £m

Investment management expenses and transaction costs 5 5
Qutsourcing expenses 4 5
9 10

The Company has no employees Services are provided by Pearl Group Services Limited
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5 Directors’ remuneration

Salanes and other short term benefits
Remuneration (excluding pension contnbutions and awards under share
option schemes ansing from long term incentive schemes)

Post-employment benefits
Other long-term benefits

Contributions to money purchase pensicn schemes

Number of Directors who
- are members of a money purchase pension scheme
- are members of a defined benefit pensicn scheme

Highest paid Director's remuneration

Remuneration (excluding pension contnbutions and awards under share
option schemes ansing from long term incentive schemes)

2010 2009
£000 £000
236 401
236 401
2 27
131 -
133 27
2 27
2010 2009
Number Number
1 2

2 2
2010 2009
£000 €000
85 132

The Executive Directors are employed by Pearl Group Services Limited and Pearl Group Management Services
Limited The Non-Executive Directors are not employed but provide their services via a letter of appointment

6. Auditors’ remuneration

The remuneration of the auditors of the Company, including their associates, In respect of services supplied to
entthes included n the financial statements was £143,000 (2009 £187,000) No services were provided to

associated pension schemes

Audit of the financal statements
Other services supplied pursuant to such legislation
Services as reporting accountants
Other services
Other

7. Other operating expenses

Movement in deposits received from reinsurers

21

2010 2009
£000 £000
106 134
37 47

- 6

143 187
2010 2009
£m £m
64 3
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8 Finance costs

2010 2009
£m £m
Interest expense
On borrowings at amortised cost 3 7
Attributable to
- policyholders 3 7
Interest expense includes £3m (2009 £7m) of stock lending fees
9 Tax charge
Current year tax charge
2010 2009
£m £m
Current tax
UK Corporation tax 15 21
15 21
Adjustment in respect of pnor years (8 (m
7 20
Deferred tax
Reversal/(ongination) of temporary differences
On non-profit surpluses - 1
On provisions for future expenditure - (10)
Utihsation of tax losses - 8
Excess expenses and deferred acquisition costs 6 -
6 (M
Total tax charge 13 19
Attrnibutable to
- policyholders 1 2
- owners 12 17
13 19

The Company, as a proxy for policyholders in the UK, 1s required to pay taxes on investment income and gains
each year Accordingly, the tax benefit or expense attnbutable to UK life assurance pohlicyholder earnings 1s
included in ncome tax expense The tax benefit attributable to policyhalder earnings was £1m (2009 £2m)

Reconciliation of tax charge

2010 2009

£m £m

Profit before tax 19 31
Policyholder tax charge (1) {2}
Profit before the tax aftributable to owners 18 29
Tax at standard UK rate of 28% 5 8
Adjustment to tax charge in respect of prior years {8) (1)
Policyholder tax calculatton methodology - 10
Net taxable gains in revaluation of long-term business 15 -
Owners’ tax charge 12 17
Policyholder tax charge 1 2
Total tax charge for the year 13 19
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10. Share capital

2010
£m

Issued and fully paid 18,800,002 (2009 18,800,002) ordinary shares of £1 each

2009
£m
19

The Company’s Articles of Association contain a restriction on the number of shares that may be allotted

The holders of the ordinary shares are entitled to one vote per share en matters to be voted on by owners and to
raeceive such dividends, f any, as may be declared by the Board of Directors in its discretion out of legally

available profits

11. Liabilities under insurance contracts

Gross Re-insurers’ Gross Re-insurers’

habilities share liabihities share

2010 2010 2009 2009

£m £m £m £m

Insurance contracts 1,417 607 1,439 589

Investment contracts with DPF 118 - 123 -

1,535 607 1,562 589

Amounts due tor settlement after 12 months 1,272 568 784 550

Gross Re-insurers’

habilities share

£m £m

At 1 January 2010 1,662 589

Premiums 17 -

Claims (149) {44)

Other changes in habiliies 105 62

At 31 December 2010 1,635 607

Gross Re-insurers’

liabihes share

£m £m

At 1 January 2009 1,713 620

Premiums 24 2)

Claims (173) {45)

Cther changes in habilibes 2 16

At 31 December 2009 1,562 589
12 Unallocated surplus

2010 2009

£m £m

At 1 January 8 7

Transfer (to)/from statement of comprehensive income (2) 1

At 31 December 6 8
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13. Deposits received from reinsurers

Deposits received from remsurers are measured at fair value through profit and loss as designated upon inittal
recognition

2010 2009
£m £m
Carrying value
At 31 December
- Premium withheld from reinsurers 535 515
- Deposit back from Pearl Assurance Limited (formerly Pear Assurance Plc) 25 30
560 545
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months 560 545

The carrying value amount of these assets i1s a reasonable approximation of therr far value

With effect from 1 January 2007, the Company reassured certain pension annuities in payment to Opal
Reassurance Limited ("Opal™, a fellow group company Under the terms of this reassurance arrangement the
Company holds assets in a collateral account over which Opal has a fixed charge

Under the deposit back arrangement, premiums from London Life Limited to Pearl Assurance Limited are such that
London Life Limited makes no profit of loss on the business All claims paid by London Lite Limited are reassured
100% to Pearl Assurance Limited

14 Denvatives

The Company purchases denvative financial instruments i connection with the management of its insurance
contract and investment contract labiliies based on the principles of reduction of nsk and efficient porttolio
management

The tair values of denvative financial instruments are as follows

2010 2010 2009 2009

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

£m £m £m £m

Interest rate swaps 92 69 58 45
Swaptions 3 - 6 -
Currency forwards 3 3 2 3
Credit default swap 1 1 1 -
99 73 67 48

The amount recoverable after one year is £94m (2009 £63m) The amount payable after one year 1s £68m
{2009 £45m)

It 1s the Company's practice to obtain collateral to mitigate the counterparty risk related 1o denvative transactions,
usuaily in the torm of cash or marketable secunties

Where the Company receives collateral in the form of marketable secunties which it 1s not permitted 1o sell or re-
pledge except in the case of default, it 1s not recogmsed n the statement of financial posiion  The fair value of
financial assetls accepted as collateral but not recagnised in the statement of financial position amounts to £nil
(2009 £nil)

Where the Company receives collateral on denvatives in the form of cash or marketable secunties which it 1s
permitted to sell or re-pledge, the assets are recognised In the statement of financial position along with a
corresponding liability to repay the amount of the collateral received, disclosed as “Obligations for the repayment
of collateral received” The amount recognised as a financial asset and a financtal hability at 31 December 2010 1s
£26m (2009 £16m) and £25m (2009 £15m) respectively

Where the Company pledges collateral in the form of cash or marketable secunties and retans all the nsks and

rewards of the transferred assets, they continue 1o be recognised in the statement of financial posiion  The value
of assets pledged at 31 December 2010 amounted to £7m (2009 £nil}
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15. Obligations for repayment of collateral received

2010 2009
£m £m
Carrying value
At 31 December
- Stock lending collateral 500 649
- Denvative collateral 25 15
525 664
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 23 15
Fair value
At 31 December 525 664
16 Contingent ioan
2010 2009
£m £m
At 1 January 127 105
Movement in the year 53 22
At 31 December 180 127

The contingent loan has been provided to the Company by its parent, Pearl Group Holdings (No 2} Limited
(“PGH2") and the purpose 1s to cover the shortfall ansing as a result of prudental reserves for guaranteed
benefits under the relevant policies, which are expected to unwind over time as policies become clams The
contingent loan s only repayable if there are sufficient assets to cover policyholders’ reasonable benefit
expectations, inter-fund amounts and solvency requirements No interest accrued on the loan for the period from
1 January 2007 to 31 December 2010

The inter-relationship between the contingent loan and the insurance contract liabilities will continue to be the
subject of regular dialogue with the Financial Services Authonty (“FSA”) to ensure appropriate recognition of the
need to treat customers fairly and the obligations set out In the (Pnnciples and Practices of Financial
Management (“PPFM")

17 Financial habilities

2010 2009
£m £m
Carrying value
Financial kabWities at fair value through profit or loss
Destwgnated upon inttial recognition
Investment contracts 351 333
Deposits received from remnsurers 560 545
Contingent loan 180 127
Held for trading — dernvatives 73 48
Financial habilities measured at amortised cost 525 664
1,689 1,717
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 273 203

The carrying value of the financial habiities measured at amortised cost approximates to fair value

18. Provisions

Total
£m
As at 1 January 2010 - 2
Reteased durtng the
year (@

At 31 December 2010 .

25




LONDON LIFE LIMITED

19. Tax assets and liabilities

Current tax receivables
Net deferred tax assets
Total tax assets

Current tax payables
Net deferred tax habilites
Total tax habilities

Deferred tax assets comprise:

Expenses and deferred acquisition costs carned forward
Gross deferred tax assets

Deferred tax lhabilities comprise:

Intangible assets
Gross deferred tax labilities

Movements in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) comprise:

At 1 January
Amounts charged to the statement of comprehensive income
At 31 December

2010 2009
£m £m

4 10

4 10

9 6

2 2

11 8
2010 2009
£m £m

4 10

4 10
2010 2009
£m £m

2 2

2 2
2010 2009
£m £m

8 7

(6) 1

2 8

Deferred tax has been prowided on the surpluses within the non-profit funds on the assumphion that all such

surpluses will eventually be distnbuted to owners

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carned forward only to the extent that realisation of the

related tax benefit 1s probable

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
Tax losses carried forward
Deferred tax assets not recognised on capital losses

These can only be offset against future capital gains and have no expiry date

20 Payables related to direct Insurance contracts

Payables related to direct insurance centracts

Amount due for settlement after 12 months

26

2010
£m

24

2010
£m

2009
£fm

29
52

2009
£m
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21. Accruals

2010 2009
£m £m
Accruals 2 1
Amount due for settlement after 12 months - -
22, Other payables
2010 2009
£m £m
Investment broker balances - 1
Other payables 9 18
9 19
Amount due for setttement after 12 months - -
23. Investment in subsidiaries
The pnncipal subsichanes of the Company are dormant and are as follows
Country of
incorporation and Class of shares held
principal place of {wholly-owned)
operation
Trustees
London Life Trustees Limited UK Ordinary shares of £1
Insurance companies
The London Lifte Association Limited UK Membership status
24 Intangible assets — acquired in-force business
2010 2008
£m £m
Cost
At 1 January and 31 December 101 101
Amortisation
Al 1 January 22 92
Charge 1 -
At 31 December 93 92
Carrying amount
At 31 December 8 9
Amount recoverable within 12 months 1 1
Amount recoverable after 12 months 7 8

The acquired in-force business was recogmised upon the demutalisation of AMP Limited in 1998 and represents
the shareholders share of future bonuses ansing within the with-profits fund
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25 Loans and deposits

2010 2009
£m £m

Loans to Group entities at amortised cost
Leans to PGHZ2, the Company's immediate parent 75 74
Loan to National Prowident Life Limited, a fellow subsidiary - 65
75 139
Other loans 71 70
At 31 December 146 209

On November 2010, the loan to National Provtdent Life Limited was transferred from London Life Limited to Pearl
Assurance Limited for a sum of £65m The movement in the loan value with PGH2 i1s due to capitalised interest

Included 1n Other loans are policy loans and a £69m loan note issued by Awial Credit Opportunities Holdings

Limited, a fellow subsidiary and a holding company of another fellow subsidiary, Axial Fixed Income Opportunities
S A R L to the collateral fund of London Life Limited Interest is deferrable and cumulative

26 Financial assets and financial instrument fair value hierarchy

2010 2009

£m £m

Loans at amortised cost 146 209
Financtal assets at fair value through profit or loss

Held for trading — derivatives 99 67

Designated upon initial recognition

Equities 6 3

Fixed and vanable rate income securities 1,554 1,640

Collective investment schemes 982 756

Remnsurers' share of investment contract hlabilities 13 13

2,800 2,688

Amount recoverable after 12 months 1,846 1,937

The faur value of loans and deposits at amortised cost amounted to £146m (2008 £209m)

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial instruments

Level 1 financial instruments The farr value of financial instruments traded in active markets {such as publicly
traded secunties and denvatives) 1s based on quoted market pnices at the penod end The quoted market price
used for financial assets I1s the current bid price on the trade date If the bid pnce 1s unavailable a 'last traded'
approach I1s adopted For units in unit trusts and shares in open ended investment companies, farr value 1s by
reference to published bid values

Level 2 financial instruments The fair values of investments that are not traded in an active market are
determined using valuation techniques with observable market inputs The fair value of shares and other vanable
yield secunties and of denvative financial instruments, are estimated using pricing models, discounted cash flow
techruiques or broker quotes Where pricing models are used, inputs are based on market related data at the
period end Where discounted cash flow techmques are used, estmated future cash flows are based on
management's best esttimates and the discount rate used 1s a market related rate for a similar instrument

Level 3 financial instruments The Company's financial assets determined by valuation techniques using non
observable inputs are based on a combination of independent third party evidence and internally developed
models Third party evidence in the form of net asset valuation statements are used in the vatuation of the
majority of indirect property, private equity and hedge funds Broker quotes are received for certain bonds where
the market 1s considered to be inactive Internally developed models have been used in the valuation of a small
nurmber of investment vehicles which due to their nature and complexity have no external market tnputs into the
internally developed models are based on market observable data where availlable

28




LONDON LIFE LIMITED

Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value

Total fair
At 31 December 2010 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value
£m £m £m £m
Financial agsets at fair value
Denvatives - 99 - 99
Financial assets designated at farr value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition
Equities 1 - 5 6
Fixed and vanable raie income securibies 1,386 20 78 1,554
Collective iInvestment schemes 894 3 85 982
Reinsurers share of investment contract } 13 . 13
labilities
2,281 106 168 2,555
Total financial assets at fair value 2,281 205 168 2,654
Total fair
At 31 December 2010 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value
£m £m £m £m
Financial iiabilities at fair value
Denvatives - 73 - 73
Financial habilihes designated at fair value
through profit or toss upon initial recognition
Investment contract llabilies - 351 - 351
Contingent loan - 180 - 180
Deposits received from reinsurers - 560 - 560
- 1,091 - 1,091
Total financial habilities at fawr value - 1,164 - 1,164
Total fair
At 31 December 2009 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value
£m £m £m £m
Financial assets at fair value
Denvatives - 67 - 67
Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss upon inthal recogrmtion
Equities 1 - 2 3
Fixed and vanable rate ncome securities 1,540 42 58 1,640
Collective investment schemes 582 1 174 757
Reinsurers share of investment contract
habifities - 13 - 13
Deposits received from reinsurers - 545 - 545
2,123 601 234 2,958
Total financial assets at fair value 2,123 668 234 3,025
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Total fair
At 31 December 2009 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value
£m £m £m £m
Financial habilities at fair value
Dervatives - 48 - 48
Financial habihties designated at fair value
through profit or loss upon inthia!l recognition
Investment contract habilities - 333 - 333
Contingent loan - 127 - 127
- 460 - 460
Total financial habilhities at fair value - 508 - 508

Level 3 financial instrument sensitivities

Level 3 instruments in indirect property, pnvate equity and hedge funds are valued using net asset statements
provided by independent third partes and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared

Fixed and vanable rate income secunties categonsed as Level 3 instruments are valued using broker quoles
Although such valuations are sensitive to estimates, 1t 1s believed that changing one or more of the assumptions
to reasonably possible alternative assumptions would not change the fair value significantly

Included 1n Level 3 instruments in collective investment schemes is an investment in a property related structure
with a value of £12m (2003 £15m), which has been independently valued using a multi scenano discounted cash
flow model Under the optimistic scenano, the fair value of the investment would increase by £10m {2009 £3m}
and in the worst case scenario the fair value would decrease by £12m (2009 £10m)

Significant transfers of financial instruments between level 1 and level 2

From From
level 1 level 2
At 31 December 2010 tc level 2 to level 1
£m £m
Financial assets at fair value
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss upoen mitial
recognition
Fixed and vanable rate income securities - 48

2010 saw an improvement in the hguidity of the fixed and vanable rate income secunties market which has
resulted in a number of secunties moving from level 2 into level 1

There were no significant movements between level 1 and level 2 investments in 2009
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Movement in level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value

Total losses Unrealised
At in statement of Transters to At losses
1 .Jan comprehensive Purchases fevel 1 and 31 Dec on assets held
2010 Income and sales {aval 2 2010 at end of year
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
designated at fair value
through profit or loss
upon Imhal recognition
Equities 2 - 3 - 5 {11}
Fixed and
vanable rate
income secunttes 58 {15) 34 8) 69 (1)
Collective
nvastment
schemes 174 (86) - (3) B85 (5)
234 {101) a7 (1) 159 (27)
Total losses Unreahsed
Al in statement of Transfers 1o At losses
1 Jan comprehensive level 1 and 31 Dec on assets held
2009 mcome Sales level 2 2009 at end of year
£m £m £m £m Em £m
Financial assets
designated at fair value
through profit or loss
upon nitial recegnition
Equities 11 (9) - - 2 (9)
Fixed and
vanable rate
income sgcunties 81 {13} - (10} 58 (13)
Collectve
investment
schemes 230 (5} (51) - 174 {10)
322 (27) (51) (10} 234 {32)

Gains and losses on Level 3 financial instruments are included in net investment income In the statement of
comprehensive income There were no gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive income
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27. Stock lending

The Company lends listed financial assets held in s investment portfolio to other institutions The Company
conducts its stock lending programme only with well-established, reputable institutons in accordance with
established market conventions

The financial assets do not qualfy for derecognition as the Company retains all the nsks and rewards of the
transferred assets except for the voting nghts The carrying value of fixed and varnable rate income secunties lent
at 31 December 2010 that have not been derecognised amounted to £478m (2009 £618m)

It 1s the Company’s practice to obtain collateral in stocklending transactions, usually in the form of cash or
marketable secunties

Where the Company receives marketable secunties which it 1s not permitted to sell or re-pledge, the collateral
held in the absence of default 1t 1s not recognised on the balance sheet The farr value of financial assets
accepted as collateral amounts to £l (2009 £mil)

Where the Company receives collateral in the form of cash or marketable secunties which 1t 1s permitied to sell or
re-pledge, the assets are recogrised in the balance sheet along with a corresponding hability to repay the amount
of the collateral received The amount recognised as a financial asset and a financ:al hability at 31 December
201015 £472m (2009 £597m) and £500m (2009 £649m) respectively

28. Other receivables

2010 2009
£m £m
{Other recevables 13 5

Amount recoverable after 12 months - -

The carrying value amount of other receivables Is a reasonable approximate to their farr values

29 Cash and cash equivalents

2010 2009

£m £m

Bank and cash balances 8 188
Short-term deposits (including demand and ime deposits) - 13
8 201

The carrying amounts approximate to fair value at the penod end
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30 Cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities

2010 2009
£m £m
Profit for the year before tax 19 31
Non-cash movements n profit for the year before tax
Fair value {(gains)/losses on
Financial assets (139) (12)
Financial habilities 53 22
Impairment of
Acqguired value of in-force business and intangibles 1 -
Change i unallocated surplus (124] 1
Change in deposits received from reinsurers 15 {(7)
Inlerest ncome on loans 8 (9)
Changes in operating assets and assets and habilities
{Increase)/decrease in investment assets (158} 140
{Increase)/decrease in net derivative assets/(habilities) (7} 27
(Increase)/decrease In reinsurance assets (18} 31
Decrease in insurance contract and investment contract liabilities (9) (125)
(Increase)/decrease in other assets/(habilities) (27} {(12)
Cash (absorbed)/generated by operations (264) 87

31. Capital management

Capital Management Framework
The Company’s Capital Management Framework 1s designed to achieve the following objectives

= provide appropnate security for policyholders and meet all regulatory capital requirements whilst not
retaining unnecessary excess capital,
ensure sufficient hgquidity to meet obligations to policyholders and other creditors, and
meet the dividend expectations of owners

The framework comprises a suite of capital management policies that govern the allocation of capital throughout
the Company to achieve the framework objectives under a range of stress conditions The policy suite 1s defined
with reference to policyheclder secunty, creditor obligations, owner dividend policy and regulatory capital
requirements

The capital policy 1s set by the Board and monitored each month at both the executive and Board level The
policies ensure sufficient hquidity to meet creditor and dividend obligations through the combination of cash
buffers and cash flows Volatility in the latter 1s monitored at the executive and Board level through stress and
scenano testing Where cash flow volatiity s judged te be in excess of the Board's nsk appette, de-nsking
activities are undertaken

The capital policy 1s set by the Board and monitored on a dally basis These policies ensure there i1s sufficient
capital to meet regulatory capital requirements under a range of stress conditions The capital policy 1s managed
according to the nsk profile and financial strength of the company

Regulatory capital requirements

The Company must retain sufficient capital at all imes to meet the regulatory capital requirements mandated by
the FSA In addition to EU-directive-based “Pillar 1" and Group capital requirements, the FSA has also stipulated
a “Pillar 2" of nsk-based capital requirements that have been implemented in the UK The Company’s actual
capital requirement 1s based on whichever of the Pillar 1 or Pillar 2 requirement turns out to be more onerous for
the company The Company generally holds an amount of capital that 1s greater than the minimum required
amount to allow for adverse events in the future that may use capital and might otherwise cause the company to
fail the mumimum level of regulatory capital test

Pillar 1

With the exception of with-profits businesses, the regulatory capital requirement under Pillar 1 1s the total amount
held in respect of investment, expense and insurance nsks (the “long-term insurance capital requirement’
(“LTICR™) The regulatory capital requirement is then deducted from the avallable capital resources to give the
excess capital on a regulatory basis
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A further test 1s required under Pillar 1 1n respect of with-profits funds which may result in an additiona! capital
requirement referred to as the “with-profits insurance capital component” (“WPICC™)

The table below sets out the Company’s capital resources position at 31 December 2010 as reported In the
annual returns to the FSA and compares this with the total equity attributable to owners of the Company as
reported in the statement of financial position

2010 2009

£m £m

Total equity attnbutable to owners 209 203
Dhfferences n the valuation of assets and habilittes 163 117
Unallocated Surplus 6 8
Intangible Assets (8} (8)
Asset values in excess of Pillar 1 counterparty imits (32) (33)
Capital resources on a Pillar 1 Regulatory reporting basis 338 287

The Company has complied with externally imposed capital requirements durnng the year At 31 December 2010,
the amount of capital that the Company was required to hold was £92m (2009 £79m) and the excess capital over
that required was £246m (2009 £208m)

Pillar 2

The Pillar 2 capital requrements are based on a self-assessment methodology, the Individual Captal
Assessment (“ICA") This methodology determines the capital requirement to ensure that the Company's realistic
labiities can be met in one year's ime with a 99 5% confidence level, or in other words to be able to withstand a
one In 200 year event The FSA reviews the Company’s ICA and may impose additional capital requirements if
necessary In the form of Individual Capital Guidance ({CG")

Group Capital Adequacy

In addition to the requirement to masntain individual capital resources in excess of its individual capital resources
requirement, the Company 1s required to ensure that its capial resources are sufficient to mamntain group capital
resources In excess of the group capital resources requirement at all times This i1s calculated at the level of the
Company’s highest EEA insurance parent undertaking, Phoenix Life Holdings Limited

The group capital resources requirement 1S an aggregate of the individual capital resources requirements of each
of the regulated entities within the Phoemix Group Group capital resources are based on an aggregation of the
capital resources of each of the regulated entities, net of the Phoenix Group’s investment in them, and net of
surplus assets held in the long-term funds of the regulated entiies, but without making any deduction for
counterpany exposures In excess of defined imits

There are different forms and qualty of capital that may be admitted to the calculation of group capital resources
and there are also restnictions which kmit lower quality capital to prescribed levels Lower quality capital which
exceeds these levels must be excluded from group capital resources, with a corresponding effect on the excess
of group capital resources over group capital resources requirements

32. Risk management

The Company 1s exposed to a number of nsks in s business including those ansing from underlying assets and
labilities The Company complies with the Group approach to rnsk management which 1s descnbed In the
Performance section of Phoenix Group Holdings annual report and accounts

Risk and capital management objectives

The nsk management objectives and policies of the Company are based on the requiremnent to protact the
Company’s regulatory capital position, thereby safeguarding policyholders’ guaranteed benefits whilst also
ensunng the Company can meet vanous cash flow requirements Subject to this, the Company seeks to use
available capital to achieve increased investment returns, balancing nsk and reward, to generate additional value
for policyholders and owners

In pursuing these objectives, the Company deploys financial assets and incurs financial habidties  Financial
assets principally compnse investments In equity secunties, fixed and vanable rate Income secunties, collective
investment schemes, property, derivatives, reinsurance, trade and other receivables, and banking deposits
Financial habilities comprise investment contracts, borrowings for financing purposes, denvative habiities and
other payables
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Asset and Liability Management framework
The use of financial instruments naturally exposes the Company to the nsks associated with them, chiefly market
nsk, credit nsk and hquidity nsk

Responsibility for agreeing the financial nsk profile rests with the Board, given advice from investment managers,
internal committees and the actuanal function In setting the nsk profile, the Board will receive advice from the
appeinted investment managers and the relevant actuary as to the potential implications of that nsk profile with
regard to the probability of both realistic insolvency and of faling to meet the regulatory minimurn capital
requirement The actuary will also advise the extent to which the investment nsk taken i1s consistent with the
Company’s commitment to treat customers fairly

Dernvatives are used in a number of the Company's funds, within policy guidelines agreed by the Board and
overseen by the Investment Committee supported by the management oversight committee Dervatives are
prmarnly used for efficient portfolic management or for nsk hedging purposes

More details on the Company’s exposure to financia! nsk are provided below

The Company Is also exposed to insurance nsk Life assurance nsk in the Company arses through its exposure
to mortality, longevity and to vanances between assumed and actual expenence n factors such as persistency
levels and management and administrative expenses More detalls on the Company's exposure to insurance nsk
1s provided below

The Company's overall exposure to investment nsk is monitored by appropnate committees, which agree policies
for managing each type of nsk on an ongoing basis, essentially within the Asset and Liabity Management
(“ALM") framework that has been developed to achieve investment returns in excess of amounts due in respect of
insurance contracts The effectiveness of the Company's ALM framework relies on close matching of assets and
habilitres ansing from insurance and investment contracts, taking into account the types of benefits payable to
policyholders under each type of contract Separate portfolios of assets are maintained for with-profits business,
which includes all of the Company’s participating business, non-hinked non-participating business and unit inked-
busmness held within the with-profits and non-profits fund

Financial risk analysis

Transactions in financial instruments may result in the Company assuming financial nsks  This includes credit
nsk, market nsk and hquidity nsk Each of these 1s descnbed below, together with a summary of how the
Company manages them

Credit risk

Credit nsk is the nsk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by falling
to discharge an oblhgation These financial obligations can relate to both recognised and unrecognised assets
and liabilities

There are two principal sources of credit nsk for the Company

*  Credit nsk which results from direct investment activibies, including investments in fixed and vanable rate
income securtes, equities, denvatives, collective investment schemes, hedge funds and the placing of
cash deposits, and

e Credit nsk which results indirectly from activiies undertaken in the nermal course of business Such
activittes include premium payments, outsourcing contracts, reinsurance, and the lending of secunties

The amount disclosed in the statement of financial position 1n respect of financial assets, together with nghts
secured under unrecognised collateral arrangements, and excluding those that back investment contract
habihities, represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit nsk  Credit nsk 1s managed by monitoning of
the Company's aggregate exposures to individual counterparties and by appropnate credit nsk diversification
The Company manages the level of credit nsk it accepis through comprehensive credit nsk tolerances [n certain
cases, protection against exposure to particular credit nsk types may be achieved through use of denvatives

The Company’s credit nsk policy sets out the assessment and determmation of what constitutes credit nsk for the
Company Complance with the policy 1s monstored and significant exposures and breaches are reported to the
Investment Committee The policy is regularly reviewed for pertinence and for changes in the nsk environment

Quality of credit nsk

An indication of the Company’s exposure to credit nsk 1s the quality of the investments and counterparties with
which it transacts The following table prowvides information regarding the aggregate credit exposure with external
credit ratings
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At 31 December 2010

B and Non Unit
AAA AA A BBB BB below rated Linked Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Loans - - - - - - 146 - 146
Denvatives - a5 14 - - - - - a9
Fixed and vanable rate
Income secunties 1,022 107 245 122 24 17 17 - 1,554
Rensurers’ share of
investment contract habiliies - - - - - - - 13 13
Reinsurers’ share of
Insurance contract habilities - - 9 - - - 598 - 607
Cash and cash equivalents - 11 (3} - - - - - 8
At 31 December 2009
B and Non Unit
AAA AA A BBB BB below rated Linked Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Loans - - - - - - 209 - 209
Denvatives - 5 62 - - - - - 67
Fixed and vanable rate -
income securnties 698 780 93 25 11 12 21 1,640
Reinsurers’ share of
investment contract liabilities - - - - - - 13 13
Reinsurers’ share of
insurance contract liabilities - - 11 - - - 578 - 589
Cash and cash equivalents 49 56 €6 - - - 30 - 201

Credit ratings have not been disclosed in the above tables tor equites Whilst the Company 1s exposed to the
impact of credit default on s equity holdings, this nsk i1s not considered significant due to the spread of holdmgs
Non-equity based denvatives are included in the credit nsk table above and are subject to appropnate collateral
arrangements

Credit ratings have also not been disclosed in the above tables for holdings in collective investment schemes
The nsk of loss to the Company due to credit default on its holdings in collective investment schemes s
considered low due to the tradable nature of these investments

it 15 also the Company's policy to maintain accurate and consistent internal nsk ratings across its asset portfolio
This enables management to focus on the applicable nsks and to compare credit exposures across all lines of
business, geographical regions and products The rating system s supported by a vanety of financial analytics
combined with market mformation to prowvide the main inputs for the measurement of counterparty nsk All internal
nsk ratings are tailored to the varicus categones of assets and are denved in accordance with the Company’s
rating policy The attnbutable nsk ratings are assessed and updated regularly and significant exposures and
breaches are reported to the Board and to the investment committee

A further indicator of the quality of the Company’s financial assets 1s the extent to which they are neither past due
nor impawed The Company had no matenal assets which were impaired or past due (2009 £nil)

Concentration of credit nsk

Concentration of credit nsk might exist where the Company has significant exposure te an individual counterparty
or a group of counterparties with similar economic charactenstics that would cause therr abiity to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes In econcmic and other conditions The Company
counterparty nsk 1s menitored by the counterparty limuts contained within the investment guidelines and
mvestment management agreements, overlaid by regulatory requirements

The Company 1s also exposed to concentration nsk with individual rensurers and outsourced service providers
This 1s due to the nature of the reinsurance and the outsourced service market The Company operates a policy
to manage reinsurance and outsourcer service counterparty exposures and the impact from default 1s reviewed
regularly by executive comrnittees and measured through the ICA stress and scenano testing

Reinsurance

The Company i1s exposed to credit nsk as a result of insurance nsk transfer contracts with reinsurers  This also
gwes nse to concentration of nsk with individual reinsurers, due to the nature of the reinsurance market and the
restricted range of reinsurers that have acceptable credit ratings The Company manages its exposure to
remsurance credit nsk through the operation of a reinsurance policy and regular monitoring of exposures at the
Remsurance Management Committee The Company's largest reinsurance counterparty 1s Qpal, a fellow group
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Company, the reinsurance asset recoverable at 31 December 2010 was £535m (2009 £515m) In order to
mitigate the credit nsk ansing from this exposure and to protect policyholders, the terms of the rensurance
arrangements provide that the imhial premium payable has been withheld and placed in a collateral account

Collateral

The credit nsk of the Company 1s mitigated, in certain circumstances, by entenng into collateral agreements The
amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit nsk of the counterparty
Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and the valuation parameters

Collateral 1s mainly obtamned for reinsurance secunties lending and to provide secunty agamnst the matunty
proceeds of denvative financial instruments Management monitors the market value of the collateral receved,
requests additional coliateral when needed and performs an impairment vatuation when imparrment indicators
exist and the asset i1s not fully secured Further details are given in notes 13, 14 and 27 above

Market risk
Market nsk i1s the nsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market pnces Market nsk compnses interest nsk, currency nsk and other pnce nsk

The Company 15 mainly exposed to market nsk as a result of

the mismatch between habilty profiles and the related asset mvestment porttolios,

the investment of surplus assets including owners’ reserves yet to be distnbuted, surplus assets within the
long-term funds and assets held to meet regulatory capital and solvency requirements, and

+ the income flow of management charges from the invested assets of the Company

The Company manages the {evels of market nsk that it accepts through an approach to investment management
policy and an approach to investment management that determines

the constituents of market risk for the Company,

the basis used to fair value financial assets and liabilities,

the asset allocation and portfolic imit structure,

dwversification from benchmarks by type of instrument and geographical area,

the net exposure imits by each counterparty or group of counterparties, geographical and industry segments,
control over hedging activities,

reporting of market nsk exposures and activibes, and

monitoring of compliance with market nsk policy and review of market nsk policy for pertinence to the
changing environment

* % & 5 & & & »

All operations comply with regulatory requirements relating to the taking of market nsk

Interest risk

Interest nsk 1s the nsk that the farr value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes 1n market interest rates due to the effect such movements have on the value of interest-beanng assets
and on the value of future guarantees provided under certain contracts of insurance

Interest nsk 15 managed by matching assets and habikttes where practicable and by entering into swap
arrangements where appropnate This 1s particularly the case for the non-profit funds For with-profit business,
some element of investment mismatching s permitted where 1t 1s consistent with the principles of treating
customers fairly The with-profits funds of the Company provide capital to allow such mismatching to be effected

In practice, the ife companies of the Company maintain an approprate rmix of fixed and varable rate income
secunties according to the underying insurance or investment contracts and will review this at regular intervals to
ensure that overall exposure 1s kept within the nsk profile agreed for each particular fund This also requires the
maturty profile of these assets to be managed in ine with the habilities to policyholders

The sensitivity analysis for interest nsk indicates how changes in the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument ansing from changes in markel interest rates at the reporting date result in a change in profit after tax
and in equity it takes into account the effect of such changes in market interest rates on all assets and habilities
that contribute to the Company's reported profit after tax and to equity

With-profits business and non-participating business within the with-profit funds are exposed to interest nsk as
guaranteed labiliies are valued relative to market interest rates and investments include fixed and vanable
income secunties and denvatives For with-profit business the profit or loss ansing from mismatches between
such assets and liabilittes 15 largely offset by mcreased or reduced discretionary policyholder benefits The
contribution of these funds to the Company result 1s determined prtmarly by either the owners’ share of the
declared annual bonus or by the owners' interest in any change In value in the capital advanced to the
Company’s with-profits funds
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In the non-profit funds, policy habilihes are duration matched with pnmarily fixed and vanable mncome secunties,
with the result that sensitivity to changes in interest rates i1s very low An increase of 1% in interest rates, with all
other vanables held constant, would result in an additional profit after tax in respect of a full financial year and an
increase in equity of £14m (2009 £7m) A decrease of 1% in interest rates, with all other vanables held constant,
would result in a decrease in profit after tax in respect of a full financial year and a decrease 1n equity of £16m
(2009 £9m)

Price nisk

The Company's price nsk exposure relates to financial assets and liabilihies whose values will fluctuate as a result
of changes in market prnces other than from interest rate and currency fluctuations This 1s due to factors specific
to individual instruments, their Issuers or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market Accordingly, the
Company imits its exposure to any one counterparty in its invesiment portfolios and to any one foreign market
The portfolio of marketable equity securties and property investments which I1s carmed in the statement of
financial position at fair value has exposure to price nsk The Company’s objective in holding these assets Is to
earn higher long-term returns by investing in a diverse portfolio of high quality equities and properties Porifolio
charactenstics are analysed regularly and price nsks are actively managed in ine with investrent mandates The
Company's holdings are diversified across industries, and concentrations tn any one company or industry are
limited

Equity and property pnce nsk 1s primanly borne in respect of assets held in with-profits or unit-inked funds For
unit-hnked funds this nsk 1s borne by policyholders and asset movements directly impact unit prices and hence
policy values For with-profits fund policyholders’ future bonuses will be impacted by the investment returns
achieved and hence the price nsk In additton some equity investments are held in respect of owners’ funds The
Company as a whole I1s exposed to price nsk fluctuations impacting the income flow of management charges from
the invested assets of all funds

Equity and property price nsk 1s managed through the agreement and momitoring of financial nsk profiles that are
appropnate for mantaining adequate regulatory capital and TCF  This 1s largely achieved through asset class
diversification

The impact of non-government fixed and varable rate income secunties and, inter ala, the change in market
credit spreads dunng the year are fully reflected in the values shown in these financial statements Similarly, the
value of derivatives that the Company holds takes into account fully the changes in swap spreads

The sensitivity analysis for equity and property price nsk illustrates how a change in the tair value of equities and
properties affects the Company result It takes into account the effect of such changes in equity and property
prices on all assets and liabilihes that contnbute to the Company’s reported profit after tax and to equity

A 10% decrease in equity/property prices, with all other vanables held constant, would result in a decrease in the
contingent loan liability in respect of a full financial year and in equity of £8m (2009 £5m)

A 10% increase In equity/property prices, with all other vanables held constant, would result in an ncrease in the
contingent loan hability in respect of a full financial year and in equity of £9m (2009 £4m)

There 1s also an exposure to spread changes affecting the prices of corporate bonds and denvatwes This
exposure applies to the with-profits fund, unit-inked funds, non-profit funds (where nisks and rewards fall wholly to
owners) and in owners’ funds

A 100 basis point widening of credit spreads, with all other vanables held constant, would result in a decrease n
the contingent loan liability in respect of a full inancial year and in equity of £27m (2009 £29m)

A 100 basis point narrowing of credit spreads, with all other vanables held constant, would result in an increase in
the contingent loan liability in respect of a full financial year and in equity of £31m (2009 £32m)

Currency risk

The Company's financial assets are pnmanly denomunated in the same currencies as its insurance and
investment habilities Thus the main foreign exchange nsk anses from recognised assets and habiities
denominated in currencies other than those in which msurance and investment habilites are expected to be
settled and, indirectly, from the earnings of UK compames ansing abroad

The with-profits funds have an exposure to overseas assets which 1s not dnven by lability considerations  The
purpose of this exposure 1s to reduce overall nsk whilst maximising retums by diversification This exposure I1s
lmited and managed through investment mandates which are subject to the oversight of the Investment
Committees Fluctuations in exchange rates from holdings in overseas assets are hedged against currency nsks

Sensitivity of profit after tax and in equity to fluctuations in currency exchange rates 1s not considered significant
at 31 December 2010 or 31 December 2009, since unhedged exposure to foreign currency was relatively low
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity nsk 1s defined as the failure of the Company to maintain adequate levels of financial resources to enable
it to meet its obligations as they fall due The Company has exposure to iquidity nsk as a result of its inability to
meet iis short-term cash flow requirements and to meet its obligations to policyholders

The Board has defined a number of governance objectives and principles and the liquidity nsk framewarks are
designed to ensure that

e liquidity nsk 1s managed i a manner consistent with the Company’s strategic objectives, nsk appetite and
Prninciples and Practices of Financial Management (“PPFM™),

e cash flows are appropnately managed and the reputation of the Company and the Phoenix Greup are
safeguarded, and

= appropnate information on hquidity nsk 1s available to those making decisions

The Company's policy ts to maintain sufficient iquid assets of suitable credit quahty at all tmes and, where
appropnate, to have access to borrowings so as to be able to meet all foreseeable current liabilities as they fall
due in a cost-effective manner Forecasts are prepared regularly to predict required liquidity levels over both the
short and medium term allowing management to respond appropriately to changes in circumstances

Some of the Company’'s commercial property mvestments are held through a unit trust managed by Ignis Asset
Management Limited, a fellow group company This unit trust has the power to restrict and/or suspend
withdrawals, which would, in turn, affect liquidity To date, the unit trust has continued to process both
investments and reahsations 1n a normal manner and has not iImpoesed any restrichions or delays The Company
has applied a 10% discount to the net asset value on certain property unit trusts to reflect their hquidity in the
current market

The Company's investments in the Ignis Fundamental Solutions Fund (“IFSF”) and the Ignis Strategic Solutions
Fund (“ISSF") are managed by Igmis Asset Management Limited The fund managers of the underlying funds
have the power to Impose gates on redemptions which can restrict available hquidity within the funds

The following table provides a matunty analysis showing the remaining contractual maturnities of the Company's
undiscounted financial habiities and associated interest Liabilittes under insurance contract contractuat
matunties are included based on the estimated timing of the amounts recogrised in the statement of financial
position In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 4

At 31 December 2010

1 year or
less or Greater No
on 1-5 than 5 fixed
demand years years term Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Liabilittes under insurance contracts 263 335 641 296 1,535
Investment contracts 351 - - - 351
Deposits receved from reinsurers - - - 560 560
Denvatives 5 3 155 - 163
Obiligations tor repayment of collateral
received 501 5 19 - 525
Contingent loan - - - 180 180
Payables related to direct insurance contracts 6 - - - 6
Accruals 2 - - - 2
Other payables 9 - - - 9
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At 31 December 2009

1 year or
less or Greater No
on 1-5 than 5 fixed
demand years years term Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Liabilities under insurance contracts 778 218 312 254 1,562
{nvestment contracts 333 - - - 333
Deposits received from reinsurers - - - 545 545
Derivatives 3 3 103 - 109
Obligations for repayment of collateral
received 649 - - 15 664
Contingent loan - - - 127 127
Payables related to direct insurance contracts 9 - - - g
Accruals 1 - - - 1
Other payables 19 - - - 19

Investment contract policyholders have the option to terminate or transfer their contracts at any time and to
receive the surrender or transfer value of their policies Although these liabilities are payable on demand, and are
therefore included in the contractual matunty analysis as due within one year, the Company does not expect all
these amounts to be paid out within one year of the reporting date

A significant proportion of the Company’s financial assets are held in gilts, cash, supranationals and highly rated
securities which the Company considers sufficient to meet the liabilities as they fall due

investment contracts

For investment contracts the Company matches all the habilities with assets in the portfolic on which the unit
pnces are based with the exception of reinsurance exposure on certain [ines of unt-linked business there I1s
therefore no interest, pnce, currency or credit nsk for the Company on these contracts

In extreme circumstances, the Company could be exposed to liquidity nisk in its unit-linked funds This could occur
where a high volume of surrenders coincides with a tightening of liquidity in a umit-hnked fund to the point where
assets of that fund have to be sold to meet those withdrawals Where the fund affected consists of property, it
can take several months to complete a sale and this would impede the proper operation of the fund In these
situations, the Company considers its nsk to be low since there are steps that can be taken first within the funds
themselves both to ensure the fair treatment of all investors in those funds and to protect the Company's own risk
exposure

Insurance risk

Insurance nsk refers to the nisk that the frequency or severity of insured events may be worse than expected and
includes expense nsk The Company's liabibties under insurance contracts are detailed in note 11 and include
the following sources of insurance nisk

Mortality — Higher than expected death claims on assurance products,

Longewvity — Lower than expected number of deaths expenenced on annuity products or greater than
expected improvements in ife expectancy on immediate and deferred annuity products,

Expenses — Policies cost more to administer than expected,

Lapses — An adverse movement in either surrender rates or persistency rates on policies with guaranteed
benefits leading to losses This includes the nsk of greater than expected policyholder option exercise rates
giving rise to increased claims costs

Objectives and pohcies for mitgating insurance nsk

The Company uses several methods to assess and monitor iInsurance sk exposures both for individual types of
nsks insured and overall nsks These methods include internal nsk measurement models, expenence analyses,
external data compansons, sensitivity analyses, scenanc analyses and stress testing In addiion to this,
mortality, longevity and morbidity nsks are in centain ciwcumstances mitigated by the use of reinsurance

The profitability of the run-off of the Company’s closed long-term insurance businesses depends to a significant
extent on the values of claims paid in the future relative to the assets accumulated to the date of claim Typically,
over the Iifetime of a contract, premiums and Investment returns exceed claim costs in the early years and it 1s
necessary to set aside these amounts to meet future obligations The amount of such future obligations 1s
assessed on actuanal pnnciples by reference to assumptions about the development of financial and insurance
nsks

It 1s therefore necessary for the Board to make decisions, based on actuanal advice, which ensure an appropnate

accumulation of assets relative to habilities These decisions include investment pelicy, bonus policy and, where
discretion exists, the level of payments on early termination
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Sensitivities

Insurance llabilities are sensitive to changes in nsk vanables, such as prevailing market interest rates, currency
rates and asset prnces, since these vanations alter the value of the financial assets held to meet obligations
ansing from insurance contracts and changes in investment conditions also have an impact on the value of
insurance habhtes themselves Additionally, insurance habilities are sensitive to the assumptions which have
been applied in therr calculation Sometimes alfowance must also be made for the effect on future assumptions
of management or policyholder actions in certain economic scenaros The most stignificant non-economic
sensitivihes anse from mortality, longevity and lapse nsk

A decrease of 5% In assurance mortality, with all other vanables held constant, would result in an increase in the
contingent loan hability of £4m (2009 £4m)

An increase of 5% in assurance mortality, with all other vanabtes held constant, would resuilt in a decrease in the
contingent loan habiity of £4m (2009 £5m)

A decrease of 5% in annuitant longewity, with all other vanables held constant, would result in an crease in the
contingent loan hability of £1m (2009 £1m)

An increase of 5% In annuitant longevity, with all other vanables held constant, would result in a decrease In the
contingent loan hability of £1rm (2009 £1m)

A decrease of 25% n lapse rates, with all other vanables held constant, would result in a decrease In the
contingent loan hability of £3m (2009 £2m)

An increase of 25% In lapse rates, with all other vanables held constant, would result in an ncrease In the
contingent loan liability of £3m (2009 £2m)

Assumptions

Valuation of participating insurance and investment contracts

For participating business, which 1s with-profits business {insurance and investment contracts), the insurance
contract labihty 15 calculated in accordance with the FSA's reabstic capital regime, adjusted to exclude the
owners’ share of future bonuses and the associated tax liability as required by FRS 27 "Life Assurance” Thisis a
market consistent valuation, which involves placing a value on liabilities similar to the market value of assets with
similar cash flow patterns

Valuation of non-participating insurance contracts
The non-participating insurance contract habilities are determined using a gross premium valuation method

Process used to determine assumptions

For participating business the assumptions about future demographic trends are intended to be “best estimates”
They are determined after considerning the Company’s recent expenence and/or relevant industry data Economic
assumptions are market consistent

For other business, demographic assumptions are denved by adding a prudent margin io best estmate
assumptions Econcomic assumptions are prudent estimates of the returns expected to be achieved on the assets
backing the habilities

Cunng the year a number of changes were made to assumptions to reflect changes in expected experience or to
harmonise the approach across the Phoenix Group The impact of matenal changes during the year were as
follows

Increase Increase

n n

Insurance insurance

labilities lhabilties

2010 2009

£m £m

Change in expenses assumptions 1 2

Valuation interest rate

For participating business the labilities are determined stochastically using an appropnate number of nsk neutral
scenanocs produced by an economic scenarno generator calibrated to market conditions and gilt yields as at the
valuation date

For non-participating business, the method used to determine valuation interest rates generally follows the
regulations set out in the FSA Handhook for Insurers
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Assets are firstly hypothecated to classes of business being valued The valuation interest rates for each block of
business are based on the expected returns of the hypothecated assets The yield 1s then adjusted to make
allowance for credit nsk, liquidity nsk, reinvestment nsk and investment management expenses

Valuation interest rates (after tax for ife policies) are typically

2010 2009
Product
Life non-profit inked 3 40% 3 00%
Pension non-profit inked 340% 370%
Life non-profit non-inked 309% 329%
Pension non-profit non-inked 4 10% 4 35%
Uife annuities 320% 341%
Term assurance 3 09% 3 29%
Pension annuities in payment 4 32% 4 56%
Deferred pension annuities 4 10% 4 35%
Index Linked Annuities 384% 4 16%

Expense inflation

Expenses are assumed to increase at the rate of increase in the Retall Pnce Index excluding mortgage payments
{“RPIX™ in accardance with the Management Service Agreement (“MSA") (with each increase being subject to a
maximum of 5% per annum) the Company has in place with PGS For with-profits business the rate of RPI
inflation 1s determined within each stochastic scenano  For other business it 1s based on the Bank of England
inflation spot curve [n Instances in which inflation nsk 1s not mitigated, a further margin for adverse deviations
may then be added to the rate of expense inflation

Mortality and longevity rates

Montality rates are based on published tables, adjusted appropniately to take account of changes in the underlying
population mortality since the tabte was published, company expernience and forecast changes \n future morialty
Where appropnate, a margin i1s added to assurance mortabty rates 1o allow for adverse future dewiations
Annutant mortality rates are adjusted to make allowance for future iImprovements in pensioner longevity

The mortality assumptions were varying proportions of the following published tables

Published Table
2010

Published Table
2009

Modified PMAQQ Modified PMAQQ
Annuities in payment (UK —level} o404 prAGO Modified PFAQD
Annuities in payment (UK — index Mcdified PMAQO Modified PMAOO
inked) Modified PFAQO Modified PFAQO
Deferred Annuities (UK, i A67-70 AB7-70
deferment)
Whole of life and endowments AG7-70 AB7-70
Term assurance AB7-70 AB7-70

Lapse rates

The assumed rates for surrender and voluntary premium discontinuance n the participating business depend
pnmarily on the length of time a policy has been In force Withdrawal rates used in the valuation of with-profits
policies are based on observed expenence and adjusted when 1t 1s considered that future policyholder behaviour
will be influenced by different considerations than in the past In particular, it 15 assumed that withdrawal rates for
unitised with-profits contracts will be higher on policy anniversanes on which Market Value Adjustments do not

apply

Policyholder options and guarantees
Some of the Company’s products give potentially valuable guarantees, or give options to change policy benefits
which can be exercised at the policyholders’ discrehion  These products are descnbed below

Most with-profits contracts give a guaranteed minimum payment on a specified date or range of dates or on death
if before that date or dates For pensions’ contracts, the specified date 1s the policyholder's chosen retirement
date or a range of dates around that date For endowment contracts, it 15 the maturty date of the contract For
with-profits bonds it 1s often a specified anniversary of commencement, in some cases with further dates
thereafter Annual bonuses when added to with-profits contracts usually increase the guaranteed amount

There are guaranteed surrender values on a small number of older contracts
Some pensions’ contracts include guaranteed annuity options (see deferred annuiies below for detaills) The

total amount provided in the with-profits and non-profit funds in respect of the future costs of guaranteed annuity
options are £57m (2009 £55m)
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Discretionary participating bonus rate

The regular bonus rates assumed in each scenario are determined In accordance with the Company’s PPFM
Final bonuses are assumed at a level such that maturnty payments will equal asset shares subject to smoothing
rules set out in the PPFM

With-profits deferred annuities participate in profits only up to the date of retirement Al retirement, a guaranteed
cash option allows the pelicyholder to commute the annuity benefit into cash on guaranteed terms

In common with other ife companies in the UK which have wrntten pension transfer and opt-out business, the
Company has set up provisions for the review and possible redress relating to personal pension polictes These
prowvisions, which have been calculated from data derived from detailed tile reviews of specific cases and using a
certainty equivalent approach, which give a result very similar to a market consistent valuation, are included 1n
habiihes ansing under insurance contracis The total amount provided in the non-profit funds in respect of the
review and possible redress relating to pension pohcies, including associated costs, are £9m (2009 £8m)

Managing product risk
The following sections give an assessment of the risks associated with the Company’s main products and the
ways in which the Company manages those nsks

2010 2010
Gross Liabilities Remnsurance Share
Insurance Investment Insurance Investment
contracts contracts with DPF contracts contracts with DPF
£m £m £m £m
With-profits funds
Pensions
Deferred annuhes - 286 - - -
with guarantees
Deferred annusties -— 7 107 - -
without guarantees
Immediate annuihes 156 - 66 -
Unitised with-profits - 11 - -
Total pensions 449 118 66 -
Life
Immediate annuties - - 10 -
Unitised with-profits 7 - - -
Life with-profits 275 - - -
Total life 282 - 10 -
Other 16 - - -
747 118 76 -
Non-profit funds
Deferred annuibes - 29 - - -
without guaraniees
Immediate annuities 621 - 530 -
Protection 8 - 1 -
Other 11 - - -
669 - 531 -
1,416 118 607 -
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2009 2009
Gross Liabifities Reinsurance Share
Insurance Investment Insurance Investment
contracts contracts with DPF contracts contracts with DPF
£m £m £m £m
With-profits funds
Pensions
Deferred annuities -— -
with guarantees 305 i }
Deferred annuities - 8 112 - .
without guarantees
Immediate annuities 145 - - -
Umtised with-profits - 11 - -
Total pensions 458 123 - -
Life
Unitised with-profits 8 - - -
Life with-profits 302 - 10 -
Total life 310 - 10 -
Other 13 -
781 123 10 -
Non-profit funds
Deferred annuties — a0 . - .
without guarantees
Immediate annuities 607 - 578 -
Protection 9 - 1 -
Other 10 - - -
658 - 579 -
1,439 123 589 -

With-profits fund {(Unitised and Traditional)

The Company operates a with-profits fund in which the with-profits policyholders benefit from a discretionary
annual bonus (guaranteed once added in most cases) and a discretionary final bonus The fund includes
immediate annuities and deferred annurties with Guaranteed Annuity Rates (*GAR”)

The investment strategy backing different blocks of policies are different, but 1s broadly to invest In a mixture of
fixed and vanable rate income securities and equities and/or property in such propertions as 1s appropnate to the
investment nsk exposure of the group of policies and its capital resources

The Company has significant discretion regarding investment policy, bonus policy and early termination values
The process for exercising discretion in the management of the with-profits fund 1s set out In the PPFM for the
with-profits fund and 1s overseen by with-profits committee Adwvice 15 also taken from the with-profits actuary
Compliance with the PPFM i1s reviewed annually and reported to the FSA and policyholders

The bonuses are designed to distrnbute to policyholders a fair share of the retum on the assets in the with-profits
fund together with other elements of the expenence of the fund The owners of the Company are entitled to
receive one-ninth of the cost of bonuses declared

Unitised and tradihonal with-profits policies are exposed to equivalent nsks, the main difference being that
uniised with-profits policies purchase notional units In a with-profits fund whereas tradiional with-profits policies
do not Benefit payments for uniised policies are then dependent on the number of units held at the time of a
¢claim, although charges may be applied The unitised with-profits unit price 1s fixed, bonus unris are granted to
policyholders in ine with any discretionary bonus payments over the course of one year

Cash bonus policies

Cash Bonus policies are wntten as whole of Iife and endowment assurances where discretionary bonus for i1s
calculated as a percentage of the premium It 15 intended that the rate of bonus in any year will be at least
maintained throughout the term of each policy Bonus declarations are stated as an increase to the previously
declared rate  Once the rate of bonus exceeds 100%, the premium i1s extinguished and the rate of bonus reduced
by 100% Actual cash bonuses, once allocated, are credited to an accumulation account which accrues with
interest The accumulation account can be cashed at any time without penalty Whole of life assurances also
have the option to surrender on guaranteed terms
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Deferred annuities

Deferred annuity policies are written to provide either a cash benefit at reirement, which the policyholder can use
to buy an annuity on the terms then applicable, or an annuity payable from retirement The policies contain an
element of guarantee expressed in the form that the contract 1s wntten in 1e to prowide cash or an annuity
Deferred annuity policies written to provide a cash benefit may also contain an option to convert the cash benefit
to an annuity benefit on guaranteed terms, these are known as GAR policies Deferred annuity policies written to
provide an annuity beneft may aiso contain an option to convert the annuity benefit into cash benefits on
guaranteed terms, these are known as Guaranteed Cash Optien (“GCO") policies

Duning the last decade, interest rates and inflation have fallen and Wfe expectancy has increased more rapudly
than onginally anticipated Deferred annuity policies which are wntten to provide annuity benefits are managed in
a similar manner 1o iImmediate annuittes and are exposed to the same nsks

The guaranteed terms on GAR policies are more favourable than the annuity rates currently available in the
market available for cash benefits Similarly, the guaranteed terms on GCO policies provide more favourable
transfer values than would otherwise be the case

The option provisions on GAR and GCO policies are particularly sensitive to downward movements in interest
rates, Increasing life expectancy and the proportion of customers exercising their option  Adverse movements In
these factors could lead to a requirement to increase reserves which could adversely impact profit and potentaily
require additional capital In order to address the interest rate nsk (but not the nsk of ncreasing hife expectancy
or changing customer behaviour with regard to exercise cf the option), the Company has purchased dernvatives
that provide protection agamst an increase in liabilittes and have thus reduced the sensitvity of profit to
movemenis In interest rates

The Company seeks to manage this nsk mn accordance with both the terms of the 1ssued policies and the
interests of customers, and has obtained external adwice supporting the manner in which it operates the long-term
funds In this respect

immediate annutties

This type of annuity 1s purchased with a single premium at the outset, and 1s paid to the policyholder tor the
remamder of thewr lifebme Payments may also continue for the benefit of a surviving spouse or partner after the
annutant's death Annuities may be level, or escalate at a fixed rate, or may escalate in line with a price index
and may be payable for a minimum penod rrespective of whether the policyholder remains alive

The main nsks assoclated with this product are longewvity and investment risks Longewity risk anses where the
annuihies are paid for the lifetime of the policyholder, and 1s managed through the initial pricing of the annuity and
through reinsurance (appropnately collateralised) or transfer of existing habilittes Annuities may also be a partial
‘natural hedge’ against losses incurred in protection business in the event of increased mortality (and vice versa)
although the extent to which this occurs will depend on the similanty of the demographic profile of each bock of
business

The pncing assumption for mortality nsk 1s based on both histonc internal information and externally generated
information on mortalty expenence, including allowances for future mortality improvements Pncing will also
include a contingency margin for adverse deviations in assumptions

Investment nisk depends on the extent to which the annuity payments under the contracts have been matched by
suitable assets which 1s managed under the ALM framework Asset/iability modelling ts used to monttor this
position on a regular basis

Protection

These contracts are typically secured by the payment of a regular premium payable for a penod of years
providing benefits payable on certain events occurnng within the period  The benefits may be a single lump sum
or a senes of payments and may be payable on death, serious illness or sickness

The main nsk associated with thus product 1s the claims expenence and this nsk 1s managed through the inttial

pncing of the policy (based on actuanal principles), the use of reinsurance and a clear process for adminstenng
clams
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33 Related party transactions

The Company enters into transactions with related parties in its normal course of business These are at arm’s
length on normal commercial terms

Pearl Group Services Limited and Pear Group Management Services Limited and provide management services
to the Company, in the form of staff and other services, under a management services agreement The charge
made to the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010 amounted to £4m (2009 £5m) and at the end of the
year £nil (2009 £nil) remained outstanding

Igms Investment Management Limded, a fellow group company, and i subsidanes provide investment
management services to the Company in accordance with a number of investment management agreements
The charge made to the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010 amounted to £2m (2009 £2m) and at
the end of the year £nil (2009 £nil) remained cutstanding

In the year ended 31 December the Company received interest on loans to PGH2, the Company’s immedate

parent, of £2m (2009 £3m) and interest on loans to fellow subsidiary, Natonal Prowident Life Limited, of £6m
(2009 £6m)

Reinsurance transactions

2010 2009
£m £m
Reinsurance ceded to fellow subsidiarnies
Premiums - 2
Clams 44 45
Share of reinsurance assets 607 589
Amounts due to related parties
2010 2009
£m £m
Loans due to parent 180 127
Other amounts due to parents 2 6
Loans due 1o fellow subsidianes 25 30
Other amounts due to fellow subsidianes 6 11
Amounts due from related parties
2010 2009
£m £m
Leans due from parents 75 74
Loans due from fellow subsidianes 78 133
Other amounts due from fellow subsidianes 2 3

Key management compensation

The compensation payable to employees classified as key management, which comprises the Directors, 1s
disclosed Iin note 5

During the year to 31 December 2010, key management and other family members contnbuted £2,000 (2009
£27,000) to products sold by the Company These related pnmarnly to investment, ife and pensions products

Parent and ultimate parent entity
Information on the Company’s parent and ultimate parent 1s given in note 35
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34. Contingent liabilities

In the normal course of business the Company I1s exposed to certain legal 1ssues, which involve litigation and
arbitration, and as at the penod end, the Company has a contingent hability in this regard

Categorisation of excess working capital to shareholder funds

The Company has provided information to the FSA on its categonsation of £54m of excess working capital to
shareholder funds in 2006 The Directors are confident in their treatment, which 1s supported by legal and
actuanal advice, but note that discussions with the FSA are continuing

Reassurance arrangement with Opal

Under the terms of the reassurance arrangement between the Company and Opal the Company has a contingent
habilty of 80/130ths of an increase wn the treaty best estmate reserves resulting from mortality improvements
The maximum hability under the arrangement 1s £15m at 31 December 2010 (2009 £15m)

35 Other information

The Company's pnncipal place of business 1s the United Kingdom The Company's immediate parent 1s Pearl
Group Holdings (No 2) Limited and its ultimate parent undertaking 1s Phoemix Group Holdngs, a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and resident in Jersey A copy of the financial statements of Phoenix Group
Holdings can be cbtained from the Company Secretary, 1% Floor, 32 Commercial Street, St Helier, Jersey, JE2
3RU

36. Ewents after the reporting penod

Cn 1 March 2011, the European Court of Justice {{ECJ’) ruled that insurance companies will, with effect from 21
December 2012, no longer be allowed to use gender as a basis for calculating premiums At this time, the precise
impact of this judgement 1s uncertain, and management i1s currently examining the implications Consequently, 1t
15 not yet possible to determine with any certainty what the effect of this judgement may be an the Company
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Transition to International Financial Reporting Standards
{ntroduction

The financial statements set out on pages 8 to 54 are the Company’s first annual financial statements prepared n
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (*IFRS™) The
accounting policies set out on pages 8 to 13 have been applied in prepanng the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2010 and for prepanng an opening IFRS statement of financial position as at 1 January
2009, the date of transition from United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (*UK GAAP?) to IFRS

An explanation of how the transition from UK GAAP to IFRS has affected the Company’s financial position and
financial performance for 2009 1s set out in the following tables and accompanying notes Under UK GAAP the
Company was exempt from presenting a cash flow statement

The following information 15 set out below In relation to the transition from UK GAAP to IFRS

1 The selection of IFRS accounting policies that have been applied in prepanng the results for 2010

2 An explanation of the principal classification changes to the assets and labilities as at 1 January 2008 and
31 December 2009 and total comprehensive income for the year to 31 December 2009

3 An explanation of the changes to the measurement of assets and liabiities as at 1 January 2009 and 31
December 2009, together with their effect on equity and total comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2009

4  Summary tables showing the financial impact of the above changes on equity, habilities and assets as at 1
January 2009 and 31 December 2009 and total comprehensive income for the year to 31 December 2009

1. Selection of accounting policies

Certain IFRS permit entities to choose between alternative accounting treatments The principal choices that
have been made by the Company are set out below

Investment contracts with discretionary participation features

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts permits an entity to account for investment contracts with Discretionary Participation
Features (“DPF”) as if they are insurance contract A decision has been taken to adopt the permitted alternative
accounting treatment for these contracts

Unallocated surplus

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracis requires the unallocated surplus for with-profit business to be shown in the statement
of financial position as erther equity or as a hability or splt between the two The Company has elected to show
the unallocated surplus within iInsurance contracts habilities

Acquired insurance conlracts

{FRS 4 Insurance contracts permits the fair value of insurance habilihes acquired in a business combination to be
spht into two components, comprsing (a) a labiity measured in accordance with the insurer's accounting policies
for insurance contracts that it 1ssues and (b) an intangible asset, representing the difference between (1) the faur
value of the contractual insurance nghts acquired and (i) the amount described In (a) The Company has taken
advantage of this in recognising the fair value of insurance liabilities acquired in previous business combinations

Investments in subsidiaries

1AS 27 Consoldated and Separale Financial Statemenis permits an entity to measure s investments n
subsidianes at either cost or fair value and the Company has decided to adopt cost as its IFRS accounting policy
IFRS t First-ime Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards permits a first ime adopter to use s
UK GAAP carrying values of investments in subsidiaries as the deemed cost on transition 1o IFRS  Advantage
has been taken of this exemption and accordingly the previous UK GAAP carrying amounts of investments in
subsichanes have been used as the deemed cost in the first IFRS financial statements  Subsequently,
investments In subsidianes will be measured at cost less impairment as required by |1AS 36 /Impairment of Assets
Consequently, no measurement changes have been made on transition to IFRS

intangible assets

Intangible assets may either be recognised using the cost model or the revaluation model The Company has
adopted the cost model in recognising the intangible asset “Acquired in-force business”
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2 IFRS classification changes {column 1)

The prnncipal classificalion changes at 1 January 2009 are as follows (see column 1 in the transition tables
below} These have no effect on equity

. Assets held to cover linked habities of £295m (31 December 2009 £320m) have been reclassified to
collective investment schemes £282m (31 December 2009 £287m), cash and cash equivalents £11m (31
December 2009 £30m) and other assets £2m (31 December 2009 £3m)

Under UK GAAP the above tems are separately disclosed whereas under IFRS the indwidual line items
have to be presented

. The provision for linked habilties of £307m (31 December 2009 £303m) has been reclassified to investment
contract kabiities The change in provision for linked habilities at 31 December 2009 has been reclassified to
Change in investment contract llabilities

3. Measurement changes (column 3 to column 4)

The principal measurement changes are set out below These have no effect on equity

Acquired in-force business (Column 3)

IFRS requires the value of acquired In-force business to be grossed up for the related policyholder and owners’

taxes, with a corresponding adjustment to deferred tax Under UK GAAP the value of acquired in-force business

1s presented on a net of tax basis

As at 1 January 2009 this has resulted in the carrying values of acquired in-force business and deferred tax being
increased by £2m (31 December 2009 £2m) This change has no effect on equity

Current and deferred tax (Column 4)

Under UK GAAP deferred tax can be discounted to present values, this 1s not permitied under IAS 12 /ncome
Taxes

The adjustment required to comply with IAS 12 as at 1 January 2009 are

. Removal of discounting on deferred tax has resulted in the deferred tax asset increasing by £1m (31
December 2008 £3m) and the contingent loan hability increasing by the same amount This change has no
eftect on equity
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